
     
 

All public meetings and events sponsored or conducted by the County of Marin are held in accessible sites. Requests for 
accommodations may be requested by calling (415) 473-4381 (voice) (415) 473-3232 (TTY) at least four work days in 
advance of the event. Copies of documents are available in alternative formats, upon written request. 

Contact the County’s Waste Management Division, at (415) 473-6530 for more information 
 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT 
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY  
(aka ZERO WASTE MARIN) 

 
 

Board of Directors Meeting 
Thursday, April 20, 2023, 9:00 am – 10:00 am 

 
In Person: 922 Machin Avenue, Novato 
Womack Conference Room, 2nd Floor  

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Call to Order 
 

1. Open Time for Public Comment (Information Only) 5 Minutes. 
 

Consent Calendar 2 Minutes 
 

2. Approve JPA Board Meeting Minutes from March 16, 2023 (Action).   
 

 
Regular Agenda 

 
 
3. Executive Director updates (Information Only) 10 Minutes. 
 
4. Update on engagement with PlaceWorks (Action) 5 Minutes. 
 
5. Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) update (Action) 5 Minutes. 

 
6. Approval of final SB 1383 Letter of Agreement (LOA) (Action Item) 15 Minutes. 
 
7. JPA Agreement Amendment update (Information Only) 15 Minutes.  

 
8. Schedule and verify May and June meeting dates (Action Item) 5 Minutes.  
 
9. Adjournment 

 
 

F:\Waste\JPA\JPA Meetings\JPA 3.16.23\Agenda March 2023.docx 4/15/2023 4:43 PM 



1 
 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 
MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/446-7373 

 
 
 
 
Belvedere 
   
 
Corte Madera 
   
 
County of Marin 
   
 
Fairfax 
   
 
Larkspur 
   
 
Mill Valley 
   
 
Novato 
   
 
Ross 
 
 
San Anselmo 
  
 
San Rafael 
  
 
Sausalito 
 
 
Tiburon 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Date: April 20, 2023 
 
To: JPA Board of Directors 
 
From: Kimberly Scheibly, Executive Director 
 
Re: Open Time for Public Comment 
 
The public is welcome to address the Board of Directors on matters not 
on the agenda within its jurisdiction. Please be advised that pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54954.2, the Board is not permitted to 
discuss or act on any matter not on the agenda unless it determines that 
an emergency exists or that there is a need to take immediate action 
which arose following the posting of the agenda.  
 
Recommendation 
 
Receive public comment. Information Only. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

F:\Waste\JPA\JPA Meetings\JPA 4/15/2023 3:09 PM 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



1 of 4 
 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE 
MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

(aka ZERO WASTE MARIN) 
 

Board of Directors Meeting 
Thursday, March 16, 2023 

9:00 A.M. 
In-Person: 922 Machin Avenue, Womack Conference Room, 2nd Floor, Novato 

 
 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
Adam McGill, Novato 
Adam Wolff, Corte Madera 
Christa Johnson, Ross 
Christine Alilovich, San Rafael (Alt.) 
Dan Schwarz, Larkspur 
David Donery, San Anselmo 
Heather Abrams, Fairfax 
Todd Cusimano, Mill Valley 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT 
Chris Zapata, Sausalito 
Dan Eilerman, County of Marin (Alt.) 
Greg Chanis, Tiburon 
Jim Schutz, San Rafael 
Matthew Hymel, County of Marin  
Robert Zadnik, Belvedere 
 

STAFF PRESENT 
Amy Kolnes 
Andrew Shelton 
Casey Poldino 
Kimberly Scheibly 
 
OTHER MEMBERS PRESENT 
Alex Soulard, R3 Consulting, Inc 
Cory Bytof, City of San Rafael 
Dale McDonald, Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District 
Garrett Toy, Tamalpais Community 

Services District  
Garth Schultz, R3 Consulting, Inc 
Justin Wilcock, Marin Sanitary Service 
Kathy Wall, MRRRA 
 

 
 
 
 
1. Open Time for Public Comment 

No public comments were tendered.  
 

Consent Calendar 
 
2. JPA Board Meeting Minutes from February 16, 2023 

Todd Cusimano, Chair, called for a motion to approve the JPA Board Meeting 
Minutes from February 16, 2023. Motion by David Donery. Second by Adam 
Wolff. Vote: Unanimous.  
 
 
 

 
 



2 of 4 
 

3. Receive and file Annual Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) report 
Cusimano called for public comments on the Consent Calendar and asked if any 
present would like to pull an item off the Consent Calendar for discussion. No 
comments or questions from the public or those present were tendered.   

 
Cusimano called for a motion to approve the Consent Calendar.  
Motion by Adam Wolff, Second by Dan Schwarz.  Vote: Unanimous.  
 

 
Regular Agenda 

 
4. Updates on Local Task Force (LTF) 

 
Casey Poldino announced that the Local Task Force (LTF) will begin meeting 
again on March 24, 2023. The LTF last met pre-Covid in March 2020 and has 
four open seats. The taskforce will look at the structure of the LTF and review the 
five-year California Integrated Waste Management Plan due on April 30, 2023. 
 
Cusimano asked if there were any questions.  
 
Schwarz asked if the membership of the LTF was the same.  
 
Poldino answered the membership guidelines state that the LTF has two hauler 
facility seats, a couple of special district seats, 3 seats for environmental 
organizations, and five public members. The new Executive Director of ZWM 
wanted to see what that looked like and explore if there is a need or desire to 
change. Staff will report back to the Board. 
 

 
5. Update on engagement with PlaceWorks 

 
Poldino reported that PlaceWorks began their contract in the beginning of this 
calendar year to do the land application study on compost placement 
requirements for all of the county based on population which is required by 
CalRecycle.  
 
The kickoff meeting was on February 28, 2023, timelines were developed, and 
data compilation has begun. Poldino is working with County Counsel, GIS and 
the IT team to determine where to place the data. Marinmaps.org, a website that 
all cities use, is where they will explore if this layer of GIS data can be added. 
The next meeting is scheduled for March 25, 2023. 
 
Cusimano asked for public comments. None were tendered. 
 
 
 

 



3 of 4 
 

6. Special Districts Letter to Request SB 1383 Assistance 
 

Kimberly Scheibly reviewed the nine Special Districts’ letter requesting 
assistance with SB 1383 and that she discussed it with Garrett Toy. Scheibly 
would continue to review these requests and the resources available for Special 
Districts. Scheibly said that after an RFP process, the Board approved R3 to be 
contracted to develop a regional approach to SB 1383 compliance. SB 1383 is 
very prescriptive for municipalities but R3 is studying how to apply a regional 
approach for both municipalities and the Special Districts. Scheibly stated that 
these four recommendations of R3 are included in the letter of agreement and 
the matrix. In addition, the documents were derived from comments, questions, 
and concerns from Zero Waste Marin’s legal counsel, Staff, and the SB 1383 
Subcommittee. Scheibly noted that she hopes the Board will promptly approve 
these agreements once they are finalized so we can begin implementing the 
priority goals set in 2021. Scheibly asked for questions. 
 
None were tendered. 
 

7. Updates & Discussion on SB 1383 Membership Support MOU 
Christine Alilovich welcomed Scheibly to the Board and asked about a provision 
for responding to anonymous complaints and if we could take a centralized 
approach on Zero Waste Marin’s website. 
 
Garth Schultz of R3 Consulting thought this made sense.  
 
Scheibly agreed and said she is already reaching out to other JPA’s to see how 
they handled their complaints. 
 
Alilovich also noted that their provisions that call for fines, expressed concerns 
about municipal staff handling that and wondered if that could be centralized 
perhaps with the County. 
 
Wolff and Schwarz discussed how their jurisdictions handle fines, collections, 
and overall compliance and how that might apply to ZWM. 
 
Cusimano asked for further comments. 
 
Alex Soulard from R3 Consulting noted that these issues would be addressed in 
the annual work plan and factored into the new budget.  

 
Scheibly said all this would be returned to the Board in the April meeting. 
 
Christa Johnson asked about the composting study and deadline. 
 
Poldino replied that it is a work in progress, and she is in communication with 
CalRecycle regarding deadlines. 
 



4 of 4 
 

Johnson asked about where the composting might be placed. 
 
Schultz noted that we would know more after the PlaceWorks Study about how 
that will all work. 
 
Schwarz shared thoughts about how education of residents might be helpful.  
 
Cusimano asked for further comments. 
 
Alilovich asked about the process for suggestions and edits before the MOU 
vote in April. 
 
Schwarz suggested it would be best to bring it to the subcommittee meeting. 

 
Cusimano stated that if there were no further comments and having a motion 
and a second called for a vote for approval. Vote: Unanimous. 

 
 
8. Adjournment 

 



3 
 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 
MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/446-7373 

 
 
 
Belvedere 
   
 
Corte Madera 
   
 
County of Marin 
   
 
Fairfax 
   
 
Larkspur 
   
 
Mill Valley 
   
 
Novato 
   
 
Ross 
 
 
San Anselmo 
  
 
San Rafael 
  
 
Sausalito 
 
 
Tiburon 
   
 

 
 
Date: April 20, 2023 
 
To: JPA Board of Directors 
 
From: Kimberly Scheibly, Executive Director 
 
Re: Updates from Executive Director on Recent and Ongoing 

Activities 
 
 
The Executive Director will provide an update on recent and ongoing 
activities. 
 
RECOMENDATION 
 
Receive oral report.  Information only. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



4 
MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/473-2391 

 

 
 
Belvedere 
 
 
Corte Madera 
   
 
County of Marin 
   
 
Fairfax 
  
 
Larkspur 
   
 
Mill Valley 
  
 
Novato 
   
 
Ross 
   
 
San Anselmo 
   
 
San Rafael 
   
 
Sausalito 
   
 
Tiburon 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Date:  April 20, 2023 
 
To: JPA Board of Directors 
 
From:  Casey Poldino, Program Manager 
 
Re: Update on engagement with PlaceWorks 
 
 
PlaceWorks is providing an ArcGIS based study and dashboard to help 
jurisdictions understand their actual capacity to utilize the compost and 
mulch required to be procured as part of SB 1383 requirements from Cal 
Recycle. They are configuring an Experience Builder Application, Field 
Map Application, and Dashboard. Each jurisdiction will have the ability to 
log in, view, and edit the datasets for their jurisdiction.  
 
PlaceWorks will assist and train appointed staff with these tools. Zero 
Waste Marin staff will administer the program under the direction and 
guidance of the SB 1383 Letter of Agreement (LOA), once in place. Staff 
will need a point of contact for each jurisdiction for this project. Once we 
have a complete list, the system will send out an email with a link for 
each person to set up their password. If these users already have 
ArcGIS Online logins/accounts in the organizations they are working for, 
we can allow their access to the project using their existing credentials 
instead of creating additional logins. 
 
Please recall, each jurisdiction will be billed directly from PlaceWorks. 
Invoices will be mailed out shortly and jurisdictions have the option of 
using funds from the Zero Waste Reimbursement Program for this 
project (Attachment 1). 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Receive contact information from each jurisdiction and authorize staff 
to follow up with jurisdictions unable to provide this during the 
meeting. Staff will follow up next week to attain a point of contact for 
this project. 
 
Attachments: 
1. Table Cost Breakdown 
2. PlaceWorks Update 



Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Board Chair: Please confirm the vote on this item by reading the following items 
out loud after the vote. 
 
 
Motion:        Second:  ________   
 
 
Ayes:            
 
 
Noes:            
 
 
Abstentions:            

 



Item 4 Attachment 1 
 

Cost Breakdown per Jurisdiction for PlaceWorks Contract 
 
 
Fees will be billed to each Member Agency of the Marin County Hazardous and Solid 
Waste Joint Powers Authority (JPA) which includes the cities and towns of Belvedere, 
Corte Madera, Fairfax, Larkspur, Mill Valley, Novato, Ross, San Anselmo, San Rafael, 
Sausalito, Tiburon and the County of Marin, per Table 1 below: 
 
 
 
Table 1. Cost Breakdown by Jurisdiction  
 
JURISDICTION  COST  

 
City of Belvedere  $1,152  
Town of Corte Madera  $5,540  
Town of Fairfax  $4,121  
City of Larkspur  $7,080  
City of Mill Valley  $7,712  
City of Novato  $28,844  
Town of Ross  $1,267  
Town of San Anselmo  $6,953  
City of Sausalito  $3,940  
Town of Tiburon  $4,957  
City of San Rafael  $33,205  
Unincorporated Marin County (includes all 
unincorporated communities and applicable 
lands)  
 

$35,829  

Grand total (including hosting, maintenance, 
and licensing fees for 1 year)  

$140,600  

 



 

MEMORANDUM  

DATE April 7, 2023 

TO Zero Waste Marin Joint Powers Authority Board Members 

FROM Allison Giffin, PlaceWorks, Associate and Senior GIS Analyst 

SUBJECT PlaceWorks Zero Waste Marin JPA Compost Procurement Study 

Introduction 
PlaceWorks is working with the County of Marin and the Zero Waste Marin Joint Powers Authority to create 
a set of web-based tracking tools with which Marin County and incorporated jurisdictions within Marin 
County can track the procurement and use of organic waste products (compost and mulch). This work is 
mandated by California Senate Bill 1383 requiring all jurisdictions to procure a per-capita volume of organic 
waste products to be used in that jurisdiction.  

SB 1383 Compost and Mulch Procurement Tracking Tool 
PlaceWorks is preparing three tools in the ArcGIS Online platform as well as a reference document and 
virtual webinar series to be scheduled in early summer 2023 training jurisdiction staff to use these tools. 
Jurisdiction staff will receive a username and password, that will enable them to log into the platform and 
use the tools. Two of these tools will be accessible through an internet browser, and one will be accessible 
through a mobile app downloaded to a mobile phone or tablet.  

The primary tool will be the web browser data editing tool. Once logged in, staff can create, edit, and 
maintain a GIS layer consisting of landscaped asset features (like parks, landscaped medians, street trees, 
and other public landscaped areas). Staff can draw new features within the tool or send PlaceWorks GIS 
datasets to upload into the tool for staff to subsequently view and edit.  

In addition to the web-based data editing tool, staff will also have access to a dashboard tool that 
graphically summarizes important metrics for reporting to CalRecycle, like the sum total ‘potential’ tonnage 
of compost and mulch that can be applied within the jurisdiction annually, the sum total of ‘actual’ tonnage 
of compost and mulch that is currently applied within the jurisdiction in existing landscape programs 
annually, the remaining tonnages needed to meet the jurisdiction’s total per-capita requirement for 
procured and utilized compost and mulch determined by SB 1383, and the estimated costs associated with 
compost and mulch distribution programs.   



Z E R O  W A S T E  M A R I N  J P A  C O M P O S T  P R O C U R E M E N T  S T U D Y  
D E S C R I P T I O N  O F  T O O L S  A N D  M E T H O D S   

April 4, 2023 | Page 2 

In addition to these three map-based tools, PlaceWorks is also preparing a GIS layer consisting of open 
space areas that are potentially suitable for compost and/or mulch distribution depending on their 
vegetation type, slope, and accessibility by roadway or trail. The intent is for jurisdictions to be able to 
identify additional suitable open space areas to distribute compost and/or mulch if there are insufficient 
urban landscaped areas to meet the SB 1383 procurement requirements. This layer will be viewable and 
editable within the set of SB 1383 map-based web tools.  

Jurisdiction Responsibilities and Next Steps 
PlaceWorks is requesting that each jurisdiction designate a point-person responsible for maintaining the 
log-in information and associated documentation and training materials for the SB 1383 data tracking tools. 
This person will commit to attending a virtual training webinar in early summer 2023 or view the recording 
and review all training documentation to become familiar with using the tools to maintain the jurisdiction’s 
1383 landscape database. The reference document and recorded training video webinar will be 
downloadable, and the log-in information is intended to be sharable among multiple users within the 
jurisdiction but are not intended to be shared with the public.  

With help from County staff, PlaceWorks will coordinate directly with each jurisdiction point person to 
gather all current landscaped areas data, preferably in GIS format, that PlaceWorks will upload and 
configure within the tool, and which jurisdiction staff will subsequently be able to edit and maintain. For 
jurisdictions with no existing landscape data, PlaceWorks will work closely with jurisdiction staff to help 
them to utilize the data structure and data collection tools to build their jurisdiction’s dataset. For 
jurisdictions lacking staff resources to aid in the data collection effort, PlaceWorks will collect landscaped 
areas data to the extent possible within the project scope using available desktop mapping tools and 
through direct coordination with city/agency staff to confirm completeness and quality.  



5 
 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 
MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/446-7373 

 
 
 
 
Belvedere 
   
 
Corte Madera 
   
 
County of Marin 
   
 
Fairfax 
   
 
Larkspur 
   
 
Mill Valley 
   
 
Novato 
   
 
Ross 
 
 
San Anselmo 
  
 
San Rafael 
  
 
Sausalito 
 
 
Tiburon 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Date: April 20, 2023 
 
To: JPA Board of Directors 
 
From: Kimberly Scheibly, Executive Director 
 
Re: Update on Status of the Marin Household Hazardous Waste 

Program 
 
Historically, the JPA funded the Permanent Household Hazardous 
Waste Collection Facility (PHHWCF) for Marin (except for Novato) via a 
contract with the City of San Rafael Fire Department, which in turn 
contracts with the Marin Recycling & Resource Recovery Association 
(MRRRA) for the operation of the HHW facility located at 565 Jacoby 
Street in San Rafael. 
 
On December 19, 2022, the JPA Interim Executive Director received a 
notice of non-renewal of the Hazardous Waste Collection Program 
Agreement from the City of San Rafael. Upon acceptance of this letter, 
all duties involving the PHHWCF operations and oversight revert back to 
the JPA as of July 1, 2023.   
 
JPA staff have been working with MRRRA staff and County Counsel to 
secure best practices and to ensure contract specifications and 
appropriate regulations are being upheld. In the time allowed, we are 
looking to negotiate a one-year transition agreement, so we have the 
needed time to fully review and anticipate the contractual requirements 
long term.  
 
Recommendation: 
Delegate authority to the JPA Board Chair to sign a one-year transition 
agreement between the JPA and MRRRA. 
 
Attachments: 
 
1. Notice of Non-Renewal Letter from the City of San Rafael 
2. Draft 1-year Agreement JPA and MRRRA 4.14.23 
3. Executed Amended Collection Agreement and Reso Jan 2012 
4. HHW Collection Amendment City of San Rafael Signed 5.29.20 
 
 



5 
 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 
MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/446-7373 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

F:\Waste\JPA\JPA Meetings\JPA 4/15/2023 3:41 PM 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 





HAZARDOUS WASTE COLLECTION PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

 

 This Hazardous Waste Collection Program Agreement dated as of 
____________, 2023 (Agreement) is by and between Marin County Hazardous and 
Solid Waste Management Joint Powers Authority (JPA) and Marin Recycling and 
Resource Recovery Association, a California Corporation (MRRRA). 

 WHEREAS, the City of San Rafael and JPA entered into a Hazardous Waste 
Collection Program Agreement on July 1, 1996, as amended from time to time (City/JPA 
Agreement) whereby the City of San Rafael operated the Household Hazardous Waste 
collection program for Marin residents outside of Novato; 

WHEREAS, MRRRA and the City of San Rafael entered into the Hazardous 
Waste Collection Program dated September 14, 1995, as amended from time to time, 
attached hereto as Exhibit 1, for the establishment and operation of a Permanent 
Household Hazardous Waste Collection Facility and a Very Small Quantity Generator 
collection facility at 565 Jacoby Street in San Rafael (City Agreement);  

WHEREAS, as of July 1, 2023, the JPA will take over management of the 
operation of the Household Hazardous Waste collection program from the City of San 
Rafael at the City of San Rafael’s request; 

 WHEREAS, the JPA desires to enter into this Agreement with MRRRA to ensure 
the Hazardous Waste collection program continues to operate without gaps in service 
and such Agreement would have the same terms as set forth in the City Agreement, as 
amended, and subject to any terms as set forth in this Agreement;  

 WHEREAS, the JPA desires to work with MRRRA from July 1, 2023 to June 30, 
2024 to amend the terms of this Agreement to include definitions and provisions that 
reflect compliance with current regulatory requirements and that provide/promote cost 
effective programs, 

 NOW, THEREFORE, MRRRA and JPA agree as follows:  

1. This Agreement will have all terms as set forth in the City Agreement, as 
amended, unless expressly amended in this Agreement.  All references to “City” 
in the City Agreement shall be amended and replaced with “JPA”. 
 

2. Section 1 (Definitions), Subsection D, definition of CESQG, is hereby replaced in 
its entirety to read as follows: 
 

D. “VSQG" means Very Small Quantity Generator business that generates 
no more than I00 kilograms of hazardous waste in a calendar month as 
defined in H&S Code section 25218.1. 



 

All references in the City Agreement to CESQG shall be amended and replaced 
with “VSQG.”   

3. Section 1 (Definitions), Subsection E, definition of CESQG Waste, is hereby 
replaced in its entirety to read as follows: 

E.  “VSQG Waste”, which shall mean any Approved Hazardous Waste 
generated by Very Small Quantity Generator businesses. 

All references in the City Agreement to CESQG Waste shall be amended and 
replaced with “VSQG Waste.”   

 
4. Section 1 (Definitions), Subsection H, definition of HHWF, is hereby replaced in 

its entirety to read as follows: 
 

H. “PHHWCF” Permanent Household Hazardous Waste Collection Facility as 
defined in California Code of Regulations, title 22, section 66270.60.  
PHHWCF means the portion of the property at 565 Jacoby Street leased by 
MRRRA from Marin Sanitary Service that has been set aside and designated 
for the MRRRA to receive Approved Hazardous Wastes. 

 

All references in the City Agreement to HHWF shall be amended and replaced 
with “PHHWCF.” 

5. Section 4 (Term of Agreement and Termination), Subsection A is hereby 
amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
4. Term of Agreement and Termination 
A. The term of this Agreement shall commence on July 1, 2023 and shall 
continue to June 30, 2024, unless terminated earlier as provided in Section 11, 
Subparagraph G hereafter.  This Agreement will not automatically renew but may 
be renewed by mutual agreement of both parties.   
 

6. JPA and MRRRA agree that between July 1, 2023 and June 30, 2024, the 
parties will negotiate the terms of this Agreement and work in good faith together 
to amend the terms of this Agreement to clearly delineate roles and 
responsibilities and create a modern agreement and plan for safe, responsible 
and cost effective management of hazardous materials.  
 



7. Exhibit C of the City Agreement (Public Education) is hereby amended in its 
entirety and replaced with Exhibit C (Public Education and Outreach) attached 
hereto as Exhibit C. 
 

8. The parties agree that except as expressly provided herein, all terms and 
conditions of the City Agreement are incorporated into this Agreement. 

 

[SIGNATURES] 

  



Exhibit 1 

City Agreement and Amendments 

  



Exhibit “C” 

Public Education and Outreach 
The JPA shall have a Public Education & Outreach Program in collaboration with 
MRRRA that includes print, web and face-to-face education as detailed below: 

1. A modernized, user-friendly and informational website that can be translated into 
various languages. 

2. Printed brochures, flyers and handouts or newsletters available for the public at 
the facility and all HHW events and distributed annually to the Approved Service 
Area. 

3. Promotional items may be purchased by the JPA for distribution at public events. 
4. Periodic advertisements in local newspapers. 
5. A dedicated HHW telephone number that is answered by staff trained to answer 

HHW related questions during business hours.  After hours, on weekends and 
holidays, the public must be able to leave a voice mail message that will be 
returned on the first business day. 

6. All public information will include, at a minimum, the following: 
a. Hours and days of operation for residents and businesses. 
b. Phone number 
c. Materials accepted and prohibited. 
d. How to prepare hazardous waste materials, making appointments, and what kind 

of documentation may be required. 
7. Fees for Very Small Quantity Generators (As these fees will change periodically, 

they must be posted at the facility but do not need to be advertised. 
All PHHWCF staff will be trained to answer all questions from the public 
regarding the program/facility details in English and Spanish.   



AMENDED HAZARDOUS WASTE 
COLLECTION PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is entered into as of the 26th day of January, 2012, between the City of 
San Rafael, a Charter City ("City"), and Marin Recycling & Resource Recovery Association, a 
California Corporation ("Company"). 

WHEREAS, the City entered into a Hazardous Waste Collection Program Agreement 
with the Company, dated September 14, 1995, as approved by City Council Resolution No. 
9448, pursuant to which the Company has been operating a household hazardous waste facility 
("HHWF") and also collecting conditionally exempt small quantity generator waste on behalf of 
the City on a property owned by Marin Sanitary Service at 565 Jacoby Street in San Rafael; and 

WHEREAS, the City holds a permit from the Marin County Certified Unified Program 
Authority (CUP A) to conduct a hazardous waste collection program for household hazardous 
waste and conditionally exempt small quantity generator waste, the Facility Operator being 
named as the Company; and 

WHEREAS, the parties now desire to enter into a new agreement that supersedes the 
Hazardous Waste Collection Program Agreement, dated September 14, 1995, which shall be 
deemed terminated on the effective date of this Agreement, subject to the survival of the 
indemnification provisions in such superseded Agreement. 

NO\¥, THERFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this 
Agreement, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Definitions. 

A. "Approved Hazardous Waste" means hazardous waste that Company 1s 
authorized to receive at the HHWF from households consisting of: 

Used Oil 
Used Oil Filters 
Household batteries 
Small quantities of mercury 
Latex paints 
Pesticides and herbicides 
Kerosene 
Acids 
Caustics 
Old gasoline 

- 1 -

Other household flrumnable liquids 
Ethylene Glycol 
Lead acid batteries 
Household cleaners 
Fertilizers 
Oil Based Paints 
Paint strippers 
Lamp oil 
Bases 
Universal Waste 



Aud the hazardous waste that Company is authorized to receive from CESQG's consisting of the 
above listed household hazardous waste and any other hazardous waste as defined in Title 22, 
California Code of Regulations, Section 66261.3. 

B. "Approved Service Area" shall mean all incorporated cities and towns, except 
Novato, and the uninco1porated areas of the County of Marin. 

C. ''BOP" means grant assistance provided to the HHW program by the Marin 
County Storm Water Program. 

D. "CESQG" is a Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity Generator business that 
generates no more than I 00 kilograms of hazardous waste in a calendar month as defined in 
H&S Code section 25218.1. 

E. "CESQG \1/aste" is Approved Hazardous \1/aste generated by Conditionally 
Exempt Small Quantity Generator businesses. 

F. "Disposal Manifest" shall have the meaning set forth in California Code of 
Regulations, Title 22, Section 66262.20. 

G. "Generator" or "Producer" means any person, by site, whose act or process 
produces hazardous waste identified or listed in Chapter 11 of Title 22, Division 4.5 of the 
California Code of Regulations, or whose act first causes a hazardous waste to become subject to 
regulation. 

H. "HHWF" means the port ion of the property at 565 Jacoby Street leased by 
Company from Malin Sanitary Service that has been set aside and designated for the Company's 
receipt of Approved Hazardous Wastes. 

I. "Household hazardous waste" or "HHW" means any Approved Hazardous Waste 
generated incidental to o,vning and/or maintaining a place of residence. Household hazardous 
waste does not include any waste generated in the course of operating a business at a residence. 

J. "JPA'' means the Marin County Hazardous and Solid Waste Joint Powers 
Authority. 

K. "Participant" means any individual from a household or a CESQG that delivers 
Approved Hazardous Waste to the HHWF or removes Approved Household Hazardous Waste 
from the HHWF as part of the reuse of HHW. Participant also includes a household where 
Approved Hazardous Waste is collected as pati of the Door-to-Door Household Universal Waste 
Pick-up Program. 

L. "Permitted Disposal site" means a hazardous waste disposal site permitted or 
deemed to be pem1itted pursuant to 42 U.S.C. section 6925 and California Health & Safety 
Code, Sections 25200, 25200.5 and applicable regulations. 

-2-



M. "Registered Hazardous Waste Transporter" means a transporter registered with 
the Department of Toxic Substance Control to transport hazardous wastes, as required by 
California Health & Safety Code, Division 20, A11icles 6 (Health & Safety Code Section 25160 
et seq.) and 6.5 (Health & Safety Code Section 25167.1 et seq.), and California Code of 
Regulations, Title 22, Division 4.5, Chapter 13; Section 66264.10 et seq. 

N. "Reuse" means to use a material again for its original pmpose without additional 
processing by providing the material free to the public. 

0 . "Universal Waste" means hazardous waste consisting of: 

Electronic devices 
Batteries 
Fluorescent tubes and bulbs 
Mercury-containing equipment 
CRTs 
Aerosol cans 

2. Scope of Services. 

A. Acceptance and Management of Approved Hazardous Waste. 

(I) Company shall perform all operational services for the Door-to-Door 
Household Universal Waste Pick-up Program and at the HHWF in connection with receipt, 
storage, handling, disposal and data collection of the Approved Hazardous Waste in accordance 
with this Agreement and all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations. 

(2) Company shall accept Approved Hazardous Waste at the HHWF 
according to the operating schedule as described in Exhibit "A", as it may be modified from time 
to time by agreement of the parties or as otherwise provided in Exhibit "A". 

(3) The Company shall voluntarily receive at the HHWF only Approved 
Hazardous Waste which has been produced by a resident or a CESQG located within the 
Approved Service Area. Before accepting such waste, Company shall require verification that 
the Approved Hazardous Waste delivered to the Company was produced by residents within the 
Approved Service Area. 

( 4) Moreover, the Company shall not receive any hazardous waste which it 
does not believe can be handled or stored legally, safely, or compatibly with the facilities and 
with other hazardous wastes at the HHWF. Company shall not accept any Un-Approved 
Hazardous Waste at the HHWF as identified in EXHIBIT "B". 

(5) Company shall segregate, package, label and otherwise prepare, and 
contract for transport of Approved Hazardous Waste received at the HHWF by a Registered 
Hazardous Waste Hauler, approved by the City's Fire Department, to a Permitted Disposal site. 
Company shall have a written Transport Agreement with any Registered Hazardous Waste 

-3-



Transporter selected by Company to transport the Approved Hazardous Waste that obligates 
such Transporter to indemnify, defend, hold harmless and release City and the JPA, and their 
officers, agents and employees, from and against any and all actions, claims, damages, liabilities 
or expenses (including costs of defense, settlement, expert witness fees, and attorney's fees) that 
may be asserted by any person or entity, including the Transporter's employees or agents, arising 
out of or in connection with the performance of such Transporter under the Transport 
Agreement, whether or not there is concurrent negligence on the part of the City or JPA, but 
excluding liability due to the sole active negligence or sole willful misconduct of the City or 
JP A. Such Transport Agreement also shall require the Transpo1ter to carry the following 
insurance which City may require to be carried with higher coverage limits if determined to be 
reasonably necessary to protect the City and JPA's interests: 

Commercial General Liability Insurance--$ 2 Million 
Automobile Insurance--$5 Million 
Pollution, Sudden and Accidental Insurauce--$5 Million 
Workers Compensation--Statutory limits 

The Commercial General Liability Insurance, Automobile Insurance, and Pollution, Sudden and 
Accidental Insurance shall be placed with an insured with an A.M. Best rating of at least A7. The 
Commercial General Liability Insurance also shall name the City and JP A as additional insureds, 
with such insurance being primary insurance. 

(6) Company shall collect, maintain and provide copies to the City of all 
manifests, shipping documents, waste disposal invoices and any other documents and data 
related to waste received, disposal and dispersal. 

(7) Company shall have the responsibility for the safe handling and storage of 
the Approved Hazardous Waste from the time the Approved Hazardous Waste is received by 
Company through the Door-to-Door Household Universal Waste Pick-up Program, or is received 
by Company at the HHWF, until such time as the Company has completed the safe loading of 
the Approved Hazardous Waste onto a Registered Hazardous \Vaste Transporter vehicle for 
transport to a Permitted Disposal site designated on a Disposal Manifest. 

(8) Company shall work to resolve all customer conflicts internally without 
contacting or involving the City. 

(9) Company shall provide security to assure the safety of Approved 
Hazardous Waste stored at the HHWF. 

B. Transportation and Disposal of Approved Hazardous Waste. 

(I) Under the terms of this Agreement, the City agrees that it is and accepts 
the responsibilities of the Generator and Producer of the Approved Hazardous Waste received by 
the Company at the HHWF in accordance with this Agreement. However, City shall not be 
responsible for contamination permitted or caused by Company as a result of activities or 
operations by the Company. 

-4 -



(2) The City agrees that Company shall be responsible for the Bills of Lading 
or Hazardous Waste Manifests in accordance with United States Department of Transportation 
and State regulations. Company agrees to provide an experienced and qualified person to sign 
hazardous waste shipment manifests and bills of lading on behalf of the City. 

(3) City shall provide a Hazardous Waste Califomia ID number. 

C. Reporting Requirements. 

(1) Within one month following the end of each qua11er, Company shall 
submit reports to City detailing HHW program and CESQG program activities for the previous 
quarter; the report shall include all of the following: 

(a) Expense invoices and collection and disposal related paperwork, 
including but not limited to manifests, bills of lading, Participant delivery receipts, and reuse 
receipts. 

(b) All revenue receipts including but not limited to the CESQG fees. 

( c) List of the types and quantities of CESQG waste received together 
with identity of the jmisdiction where the CESQG waste was located. 

(d) List of the types and quantities ofHHW received together with the 
identity of the jmisdiction where the household was located. 

(e) List of the types and quantities of Door-to-Door Household 
Universal Waste received. 

(2) Within one month following the end of each City fiscal year ending, 
Company shall submit a repo1t to the City detailing the types and total quantities of waste 
received by the HHW program in the previous fiscal year, so that the City may comply with 
State of California's reporting regulations as c1mently specified in the California Department of 
Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) Form 303a, or any successor regulations. 

(3) By February I of each year, the Company shall submit a repo11 to the City 
regarding the electronic waste received by the HHW program in the previous calendar year, so 
that the City may comply with State of California' s reporting regulations as cunently specified in 
the California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (Cal Recycle) Annual CEW Net 
Cost Report Fo1m 220 and CEW Net Cost Estimation Worksheets for Collectors Form 220A, or 
any successor regulations. 

(4) City may require Company to provide additional operational related data 
as deemed necessary for the City's monitoring and supervision of the operations of the HHWF. 

-5-



D. Trained and Qualified Personnel. 

(I) Company shall be the supervisors of HHWF staff and resolve any 
personnel issues or conflicts without City involvement. 

(2) Company shall ensure that sufficient numbers of personnel meeting the 
requirements of this section are available during the operating schedule to adequately meet the 
requirements of the Agreement. 

(3) Company shall use qualified staff trained in minor spill response, general 
health and safety, and emergency procedures to collect, sort, identify and package, manifest, 
transport and arrange for the treatment ai1d/or disposal of incoming Approved Hazardous Waste. 

( 4) Company shall ensure that any persom1el assigned to the functions 
described in Section 2.D.(3) shall receive the training specified in California Code of 
Regulations, Title 22, Section 66264. I 6(a), and Title 8, Sections 3380 and 5 I 92, and shall keep 
records of such training available on site at all times for inspection by the City. 

(5) Company shall ensure that a medical surveillance program is instituted for 
personnel meeting the requirements of Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations, Section 
5192(£)(2), and shall keep such records on site at all times for inspection by the City. 

E. HHWF General Operational Requirements. 

(1) Company shall provide all the required expertise, management skills, 
equipment and supplies necessary to operate a HHWF and CESQG Waste Collection program, 
and a Door-to-Door Household Universal Waste Pick-up Program, including but not limited to, 
providing properly trained and qualified personnel, preparing and distributing public information 
materials to Participants and members of the public, collecting Approved Hazardous Waste, 
identifying unknown wastes, packaging and labeling the Approved Hazardous Waste, and 
providing on-site interim storage, transpo11, recycling, reuse, and disposal of the Approved 
Hazardous Waste. 

(2) Company shall ensure compliance with the standards and policies as 
specified in the City's HHWF Operations Manual, dated October 1993, as it may be amended by 
City from ti.me to time hereafter. 

(3) Company shaU provide personnel to control on-site traffic, greet 
Participants, unload Participant's vehicles, and identify and segregate Approved Hazardous 
Waste. Company shall instruct Participants to remain in their vehicles at all times as required by 
State law. Prior to unloading, Company shall inspect the material for any potential Un-Approved 
Hazardous Waste. 

-6-



F. Surveys and Information Materials. 

(I) When requested by the City, Company shall provide personnel to 
distribute City infonnation materials and/or collect City survey information from Participants at 
theHHWF. 

• (2) Company shall contract for the printing of Household Waste Delivery 
forms and CESQG delivery forms as necessary. 

G. Public Education. 

Company shall have a public education program as described in EXHIBIT "C" to 
promote use of the HHWF and the Door to Door Household Universal Waste Pick-up Program 
provided in subparagraph J below. 

H. CESOG Waste Collection. 

(!) Company shall ensure that when a CESQG is being unloaded, only one 
waiting vehicle is unloaded at a time, and that all paiticipants remain in their vehicles. A single 
file unloading line shall be maintained at all times. 

(2) Company shall: 

(a) Ensure t11at CESQG's are charged in accordance with the fee 
amounts listed on the CESQG Fee List as set forth by City Resolution. 

(b) Track quantities and pounds of waste, total pounds delivered from 
each municipality or jurisdiction and total dollar amounts collected from CESQG's. 

(c) Invoice tl1ose businesses that do not pay during delivery. 

( d) Provide a receipt to CESQG' s, which shall reflect the name of the 
CESQG, the address and phone number of the CESQG, the poundage of waste received, the fees 
paid for depositing the waste at the HHWF, and the HHWF and CESQG's Hazardous Waste 
California ID Number. 

l. Reuse. 

(I) In conjunction with the HHW and CESQG Waste collection and disposal, 
Company shall promote and operate a reuse program. Company shall make available to the 
public ce11ain hazardous and recyclable materials for the purpose of reuse by the public. 
Company shall assure that any reuse materials are not leaking, and shall maintain such reuse 
materials in an approved storage container, in a designated location that is accessible and safe for 
retrieval by the public. Signage shall be provided to direct the public to the reuse area. 

(2) Company shall maintain records of the Reuse participants' municipality or 

-7 -



jurisdiction, quantity and type of Reuse materials taken and provide the same to City as provided 
in 2 C, specifying the Reuse participants' municipality or jurisdiction, type and quantity of 
materials retrieved and date of retrieval. 

J. Door-to-Door Household Universal Waste Pick-up Program. 

(I) Company shall establish a Door-to-Door Household Universal Wast~ 
Pick-up Program as provided in EXHIBIT "D", with a targeted implementation date of July I, 
2012, subject to budgeting in the amrnal HHW program budget approved by the JPA. 

(2) The service area for the implementation of the Door-to-Door Household 
Universal Waste Pick-up Program shall be initially limited to the City of San Rafael. The 
Company shall expand the Door-to-Door Household Universal Waste Pick-up Program to other 
municipalities or jurisdictions upon mutual agreement between the City and Company subject to 
budgeting of such expansion in the annual HHW program budget approved by the JP A. 

3. ComJ>any's Books and Records. 

A. Company shall maintain any and all documents and records demonstrating or 
relating to Company's performance of services under this Agreement, including ledgers, books 
of account, invoices, vouchers, cancelled checks, or other documents or records evidencing or 
relating to work, services, employee time-sheets, and expenditures and disbursements charged to 
City under this Agreement. All financial documents or records shall be maintained in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and all documents shall be sufficiently 
complete and detailed so as to permit an accurate evaluation of the services provided by 
Company under this Agreement. All such documents or records shall be maintained for four 
years following the final payment under this Agreement. The Company shall make available 
such documents and records for audit, review and copying by City or City's agent upon 10 days 
advance notice from City. 

B. City shall have the right to request and receive any Company documentation or 
other information that is reasonably necessary for City to properly evaluate any Company 
invoices submitted to the City and to withhold payment pending receipt and evaluation of all 
information requested. Contractor hereby grants City permission to contact any vendor, supplier, 
contractor named in the invoice for the purposes of evaluation and/or verification of an invoice. 

C. In August 2012 and every three years thereafter, there shall be an independent 
ce11ified audit of the Company's records of the expenses, profit and revenues for the previous 
period under this Agreement. The City shall obtain the services of an independent auditor to 
perform this audit, the cost of which shall be included in the annual approved JPA budget. The 
Company shall provide an adequate work space within their administrative office for the auditor 
to perform the audit. During the audit Company shall make all records under this agreement 
available to the auditor. Upon completion, the results of the certified audit shall be made 
available to the City, JPA and Company. 

- 8 -



4. Term. 

A. The term of this Agreement shall commence upon March I, 2012 and shall 
continue to June 30, 2020, subject to earlier tem1ination as provided in Section 1 I .G. 

B. This Agreement shall not become effective unless the City and the JPA have 
entered into an Amended Hazardous Waste Funding Agreement which supersedes the 
Agreement between the City and the JPA dated July I, 1996. 

5. Compensation. 

The procedures for compensation to the Company are as outlined in Exhibit "E". 

6. Compliance with Ag1·eement; Applicable Laws; Inspections. 

A. Company shall perform its obligations under this Agreement in conformance with 
the conditions of the CUPA permit issued to the City and with all applicable federal, state and 
local laws and regulations. 

B. Company shall maintain the HH\\TF in such a condition that it can pass a Marin 
County CUPA inspection at any time. 

C. Company shall inspect the HHWF at least monthly to confirm compliance with 
the CUPA permit and all applicable laws. 

D. City shall be entitled to inspect the HHWF, with or without Marin County CUPA, 
at any time during the HHWF operational hours, without any advance notice to Company, to 
confirm compliance with the CUPA permit and all applicable laws, and compliance with the 
terms of this Agreement. 

7. Indemnification. 

A. Company agrees to accept all responsibility for loss or damage to any person or 
entity, and to defend, indemnify, hold harmless and release City, its officers, agents and 
employees, from and against any and all actions, claims, damages, liabilities or expenses 
(including costs of defense, settlement, expe1t witness fees, and attorney's fees) that may be 
asse1ted by any person or entity, including Company's employees or agents, arising out of or in 
connection with the performance of Company under this Agreement, whether or not there is 
concunent negligence on the part of the City, but excluding liability due to the sole active 
negligence or sole willful misconduct of the City. This indemnification obligation is not limited 
in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages or compensation payable to or 
for Company or its agents under workers' compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other 
employee benefit acts. In addition, Company shall be liable to City for any Joss or damage to 
City property arising from or in connection with Company's performance hereunder. 

-9-



B. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties understand that Company's obligation 
to defend, indemnify, hold harmless and release City shall not apply to and specifically excludes 
any and all liability arising out of or in connection with the handling, treatment, storage or 
disposal of Approved Hazardous Waste by third parties after it has been loaded onto a Registered 
Hazardous Waste Transporter vehicle for transport to a Permitted Disposal site designated on a 
Disposal Manifest, and that as between the parties to this Agreement, Company shall not (for 
liability purposes or otherwise) be construed as either the generator or arranger of such Approved 
Hazardous Waste. 

8. Insurance. 

Company shall procure and maintain for the duration of this Agreement, insurance as 
provided hereafter against claims for injuries to persons or damages to prope1ty which may arise 
from or in connection with the work hereunder by the Company, its agents, representatives, 
employees or subcontractors. With respect to Commercial General Liability, Auto Liability 
Insurance, and Pollution Liability Insurance, coverage shall be maintained for a minimum of five 
(5) years after the expirat ion or earlier tennination of this Agreement. 

A. Mininrnm Scope of Insurance. Company shall maintain Insurance policies with 
coverages as follows: 

I. Commercial General Liability, occurrence based coverage (Insurance 
Services Office Form CG000 1 ); 

2. Automobile Liability Insurance, any owned and non-owned vehicle 
(Insurance Services Office Form No. CA000l); 

3. Worker's Compensation Insurance, as required by the State of California; 

4. Employer's Liability Insurance; and 

5. Pollution Liability Insurance. 

B. Minimum Limits of lnsm-ance. Company shall maintain coverage limits in its 
insurance policies that are no less than; 

1. Commercial General Liability: $3 Million per occurrence and $6 Million 
policy annual aggregate, for bodily injmy, personal injury and prope11y damage. 

2. Automobile Liability: $3 Million per accident for bodily injury and 
property damage. 

3. Workers Compensation Insurance: Statutory mini.mum. 

4. Employer's Liabi lity Insurance: $1 Million each accident, $1 Million 
policy limit bodily injury by disease, and $ I Million each employee bodily injury by disease. 

- 10-



5. Pollution Liability Insurance: $6 Million each occurrence, $6 Million 
policy armual aggregate. 

C. Deductible and Self Insured Retention. Any deductibles or self insured retention 
shaU be declared to and approved by the City. If possible, the insurer shaU reduce or eliminate 
such deductibles or self insured retention as respects the City, its officers, officials, employees 
and volunteers; or the Company shall provide evidence satisfactory to the City guaranteeing 
payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration and defense expenses. In the 
event Company maintains a self insured retention under any of the foregoing insurance policies, 
the Company shall upon notice of a claim under a policy surrender and pay the self insured 
retention amount toward the defense and settlement of said claim. 

D. Other Insurance Provisions. 

I. The Commercial General Liability, Automobile Liability and Pollution 
Liability Insurance policies shall contain, or shall be endorsed to contain, the following 
provisions: 

(a) The City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers shall be 
named as additional insureds. 

(b) The Company's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as 
respects the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers. Any insurance or self
insurance maintained by the City, its members, officers, officials, employees, agents or 
volunteers shall be excess of the Company's insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

(c) Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to 
state that coverage shall not be canceled or materially changed by the Insurer except after thirty 
(30) days prior written notice has been given to the City. 

2. The Automobile Liability policy shall be endorsed to delete the Pollution 
exclusion and add the Motor Carrier Act endorsement (MCS-90), TL I 005, TL I 007 and any 
other endorsements that may be required by federal or state authorities. 

3. None of the required insurance policies may be obtained on a Claims 
Made basis, other than the Pollution Liability Insurance, and if such insurance is obtained on 
such a basis, the following shall apply: 

(a) The "Retro Date" shall be shown, and shall be before the date of 
the Agreement or the beginning of contract work. 

(b) Insurance shall be maintained and evidence of insurance shall be 
provided for at least five (5) years after completion of the Agreement, or earlier termination 
thereof. 

(c) If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with 

- 11-



another claims made policy form with a "Retro Date" prior to the effective date of the 
Agreement, the Company shall purchase "extended reporli.ng" coverage for a minimum of five 
(5) years after completion of contract work. 

(d) A copy of the claims reporting requ irements shall be submitted to 
the City for review. 

E. Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current 
A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII if admitted. If Pollution Liability Insurance is not 
available from an "Admitted" insurer, the coverage may be written by a Non-admitted insurance 
carrier. A Non-admitted Company shall have an A.M. Best's rating of A:X or higher. 

F. Verification of Coverage. Company shall furnish the City with a Certificate of 
Coverage verifying the required insurance policies and coverage, and shall provide City with 
portions of the insurance policies or endorsements of.such policies satisfying the requirements of 
Section 8.4, to the reasonable satisfaction of City. Upon City written request, Company shall 
provide City with certified copies of the required insurance policies and pertinent endorsements, 
within thirty (30) days after City's request. 

G. J'olicy Obligations. Company's indemnity and other obligations shall not be 
limited by the foregoing insurance requirements. 

H. Material Breach. If Company, for any reason, fails to maintain insurance 
coverage which is required pursuant to this Agreement, the same shall be deemed a material 
breach of this Agreement. City, at its sole option, may terminate this Agreement and obtain 
damages from Company resulting from said breach. Alternatively, City may purchase such 
required insurance coverage, and without further notice to Company, City may deduct from sums 
due to Company any premium costs advanced by City for such insurance. These remedies shall 
be in addition to any other remedies available to the City. 

9. Indemnity and Insurance for JPA. 

Company agrees to indemnify the JPA and its members to the same extent that Company 
has agreed to indemnify City under Sections 7 of this Agreement, and to provide the JPA and its 
members the same degree of insurance coverage provided the City under Section 8 of the 
Agreement, including but not limited to naming the JPA and its members as additional insureds 
under such coverage provided to the City. The Company shall provide the JPA, upon request, 
with certificates and endorsements reflecting such coverage. 

IO. Status of ComJ>any. 

A. Company is and shall at all times remain a wholly independent contractor and not 
an officer or employee of City. Company has no authority to bind City in any maimer or to incur 
any obligation, debt or liability of any kind on behalf of or against City, whether by contract or 
otherwise, unless such authority is expressly conferred under this Agreement or is otherwise 
expressly conferred in writing by City. 

- 12 -



B. The personnel perfom1ing the services under this Agreement on behalf of 
Company shall at all times be under Company's exclusive direction and control. Neither City, 
nor any elected or appointed boards, officers, officials, employees or agents of City, shall have 
control over the conduct of Company or any of Company's officers, employees or agents, except 
as provided in this Agreement. Company warrants that it shall not at any time or in any manner 
represent that Company or any of Company's officers, employees or agents are in any manner 
officials, officers, employees or agents of City. 

C. Neither Company, nor any of Company's officers, employees or agents, shall 
obtain any rights to retirement, health care or any other benefits which may otherwise accrne to 
City's employees. Company expressly waives any claim to any such rights or benefits. 

D. Company shall obtain City's written approval before utilizing any subcontractors 
to perform any services under this Agreement. 

11. Miscellaneous. 

A. Entirety of Contract. This Agreement, constitutes the entire agreement between 
the pa11ies relating to the subject of this Agreement and supersedes all previous agreements, 
promises, presentations, understandings and negotiations, whether written or oral, among the 
parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. No modification, amendment, supplement to, 
or waiver of this Agreement, or any of its provisions, shall be binding on the parties unless 
made in wiiting and signed by such pa11ies. 

B. Sevel'ltbility. In the event any one or more provisions of this Agreement shall 
for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this 
Agreement shall be unimpaired, and the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provisions shall be 
replaced by a mutually acceptable provision, which, being valid, legal and enforceable, comes 
closest to the intention of the patties underlying the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision. 

C. Assignment. This contract may only be assigned by Company to an Affiliate 
entity that controls, is controlled, or under common control of Company. "Control" means the 
direct or indirect ownership of more than fifty percent (50%) of the ownership and voting 
interests in the ordinary direction of the entity's affairs. Despite any other provision of this 
contract, the Company cannot assign this contract to an Affiliate without the express written 
consent of the City, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

D. Waiver, No waiver of any te1m or condition of this Agreement or any breach of 
this Agreement, or any pa1t thereof, shall be effective unless expressed in writing and signed by 
the party to be bound, and shall not be deemed a waiver of any other term or condition of this 
Agreement, or if any subsequent breach of this Agreement or any pa1t thereof. 

E. No Joint Venture. The Company is an independent contractor of the City with 
regard to the subject matter of this Agreement and nothing herein expressed or implied is 
intended or shall be construed to create a partnership, joint venture, agency or employment 
relationship among the parties hereto. 

- 13-



F. Third Parties. Except as provided in Sections 5 and 9, nothing herein express or 
implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon or give any third person any rights or 
remedies pursuant to this Agreement and no party hereto shall be liable to any third person for 
the acts or omissions of any other pruiy. 

G. Termination. Notwithstanding anything stated to the contrary herein, if Company 
should fail to perform any of its material obligations hereunder, within the time and in the 
maimer herein provided, or otherwise violate any of the material tenns of this Agreement, City 
may immediately terminate this Agreement by giving Company written notice of such 
termination, stating the reason for such terminat ion. In such event, Company, shall be entitled to 
receive as full payment for services rendered prior to the effective date of the termination of the 
Agreement in accordance with Section 5, less the amount of any damages sustained by City by 
virtue of Company's breach of the Agreement. In addition, City may terminate this Agreement 
upon the effective date of the termination of the Agreement between the City and the JPA which 
provides the City's funding for this Agreement, by giving Company written notice of the 
termination of such Agreement, provided that Company shall be entitled to receive full payment 
for services rendered prior to the tennination of such Agreement. 

H. Headings. The section headings contained in this Agreement are for purposes of 
reference only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. 

I. Notices. All notices and other communications required or permitted to be 
given under this Agreement, including any notice of change of address, shall be in writing and 
given by personal delivery, or deposited with the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, 
addressed to the patties intended to be notified. Notice shaU be deemed given as of the date of 
personal delivery, or if mailed, upon the date of deposit with the United States Postal Service. 
Notice shall be given as follows: 

CITY 

City Manager 
City of San Rafael 
P.O. Box 151560 
(1400 Fifth Avenue) 
Sau Rafael, CA 94915-1560 
415-459-2242 

COMPANY 

President 
Marin Recycling & Resomce Recovery Association 
565 Jacoby Street 
San Rafael, CA 9490 I 
4 I 5-485-1509 

-14 • 



\.Vith a Copy To: 
City Allorney 
City of San Rafael 
P.O. Box 151560 
(1400 Fifth Avenue) 
San Rafael, CA 94915-1560 
415-485-3109 

J. Governing Law. This agreement shall be governed by and construed m 
accordance with the Jaws of the State of California. 

K. Closure Plan. Company shall undertake and complete the requisite closure 
process for the HHWF. Except as otherwise provided herein, Company shall be responsible for, 
and shall assume all cost of closure for the HHWF as requ ired by California Code of 
Regu lations, Title 22, Chapter 15, Article 7, Section 66265.1 IO et seq., and Chapter 45, A1ticle 
I , Section 67450.30 et seq., and all applicable federal and state laws and regulations. 

(I) $50,000 of JP A funds has been collected by City and placed aside for 
payment of the costs in the event ofHHWF closure. 

(2) Closure cost beyond the available $50,000 shall be the sole responsibility 
of Company. 

(3) Company shall assure City that it has met all regulatory requirements in 
regards to closure of the HHWF. 

- 15 -



IN \VITNESS \VHEREOF, the parties ltereto have executed this Agreement as of the 
date set forth above. 

CITY OF SAN RAFAEL 

'llta,J),U. J'~-¼ 
NANCY MitK.LE, City Manager 

ATTEST: 

~gtiu..f: ~ -6a(R~ 
ESTHER C. BEIRNE, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

k-:- 2 ()?~ /2:- CZ. r. i=_ 
ROBERT F. EPSTEM: City Attomey 

-16-

J\JARIN.REC\'CLING & RESOURCE 
RECOVER\' ASSOCIATION 

~41~ EPH . ARJNO, 
Chainnan o t teBoa: 

Marin Recycling & 
• Association 



EXHIBIT "A" 

HH\\IF OPERATING SCHEDULE 

1. Operating Schedule for the receipt ofHHW and CESOG: 

A. The homs of operation are 8:00 am to 3:30 pm, with the understanding that 
employees will need an additional one half hour for cleanup and closure. 

B. The days of operation are Tuesday through Saturday, except for the following 

Holidays: 4th of July, Thanksgiving, Christmas and New Year's Day. 

2. Review of Operating Schedule 

The Operating Schedule as set forth above may be modified from time to time as follows: 

A. By agreement of the parties, following consultation with the JPA, which shall occur 
at least annually prior to the commencement of a fiscal year, or 

B. Upon City's determination that a fiscal or other emergency justifies a modification, 
following City' s consultation with the JP A, and City's giving reasonable advance 
written notice to Company of the modification in the Operating Schedule and the 

period of the modification. 

Exhibit A 



EXHIBIT "B" 

UN-APPROVED HAZARDOUS WASTE 

The following un-approved hazardous waste shall not be accepted at the HHWF: 

I. Radioactive wastes. 

2. Infectious wastes. 

3. Biohazard wastes. 

4. Explosives. 

5. Ammunition. 

6. Hard shell compressed gas cylinders. 

7. Laboratory waste. 

Exhibit B 



EXHIBIT "C" 

PUBLIC EDUCATION 

1. Company shall bave a public education program concerning the HHWF and the Door-to
Door Household Universal Waste Pick-up Program which shall include the distribution of 
information as follows: 

A. An advertised "Hazardous Waste Hotline" telephone line answered by a Company 

employee during HHWF operation hours, with an answering machine on such 
telephone Line operable at all other times to take messages for a response during 
operation hours. 

B. A11icles in local papers at least twice a year. 
C. Flyers, handouts or newsletters distributed at least twice a year throughout the 

Approved Service Area. 
D. Handouts at the HHWF continuously. 

2. In order for the public information program to succeed, efforts shall be made to reach all 
Approved Service Area audiences. Public Information shall address the needs of various 
groups (e.g., parents, children, merchants and neighborhood associations). 

3. HHWF workers shall be trained in customer relations. Multilingual (English and Spanish) 
workers shall be available at the HHWF and shall be trained to answer Participants 
questions, including questions about questionnaires, forms, and operations of the HHWF. 
HHWF employees shall encourage Pa11icipants to reduce the amount of hazardous waste 
they generate and to tell their friends and neighbors about the HHWF. 

4. Promotional materials, such as magnets printed with the slogans such as "My Garbage is 
Toxic Free", or ball-point pens or other writing instruments advertising the HH\VF 
telephone number shall be distributed on a regular basis to Participants and at public events 

and venues in the Approved area. Promotional materials shall also be provided to the City 
and the JPA for distribution to the public. 

5. The City may provide environmental management public education. 

ExhibitC 



EXHIBIT "D" 

DOOR-to-DOOR HOUSEHOLD UNIVERSAL WASTE PICK-UP PROGRAM 

I. Company will operate a Door-to-Door Household Universal Waste Pick-Up Program by 
collecting from residences and transporting to the HHWF for disposition along with other 
Approved Hazardous Waste received at that facility, the following Universal Waste 
products: 

• Electronic devices 
• Batteries 
• Fluorescent tubes and bulbs 
• Mercury-containing equipment 
• CRTs 
• Aerosol cans 

In addition to Universal Waste, the scope of the pick-up program also includes the 
following approved haz.ardous waste products: 

• MotorOil 
• Oil Filters 

2. The Door-to-Door Household Universal Waste Pick-Up Program shall be provided to 
residents by appointment only. Residents shall be permitted to make an appointment by 
calling the Company's advertised Household Hazardous Waste Hot Line phone number 
and speaking to a Company attendant during the HHWF operating hours, or by leaving a 
message outside operat ing hours on an answering machine 1i1aintained by Company on the 
Hot Line. Company shall retmn calls left on the Hot Line answering machine before the 
end of the work day following their receipt. 

3. City and Company shall evaluate the effectiveness of the Door-to-Door Household 
Universal Waste Pick-Up Program within one year from its inception, and each year 
thereafter. 

4. Company shall assme that all Door-to-Door Household Universal Waste Pick-Up Program 
operations are conducted in a safe manner and in accordance with local, state and federal 
regulations regarding the collection, transportation, storage and disposal of such waste. 

5. Company shall prepare a written operational plan for the Door-to-Door Household 
Universal Waste Pick-Up Program for review and approval by the City within 60 days of 
the commencement date of this Agreement. 

6. The Company shall offer pick-ups at customer residences under the Door-to-Door 
Household Universal Waste Pick-Up Program, by appointment. 

Exhibit D 



7. Company shall track and maintain records, and submit quarterly reports to the City, 
regarding the Door-to-Door Household Universal Waste Pick-Up Program, including total 
hours worked by each Company employee participating in the Program, equipment and 
materials used, type and quantity of Universal Waste received, and number of households 
served per day. 

8. In January 2013, the Company shall provide a written report to the City and JPA on the 
first six months of operations of the initial Door-to-Door Household Universal \Vaste Pick
Up Program in San Rafael. The details required in the repo11 will be determined while 
creating the annual budget for fiscal year 20 12-13. The report is intended to provide 
sufficient info1mation so that the City and JP A may consider the future of the program and 
the feasibility of expanding the program to other municipalities and jurisdictions. 

Exhibit D 



EXHIBIT "E" 

COMPENSATION PROCEDURES 

I. The Company shall submit a detailed monthly invoice in a form to be mutually agreed 
upon by the City and the Company. Such invoice shall be submitted by the last day of the 
month following the month for which the costs and expenses were incurred. The invoice 
shall be due and payable by the City no later than 30 days after receipt. 

2. The City shall not compensate the Company for any cost increases and/or services rendered 
beyond the amounts specified for Company in the annual HHW program budget, except 
where the increased services and additional compensation has been agreed to in advance in 
a writing between the City and Company, and approved by the JP A. All parties recognize 
that the City needs to and shall obtain approval for each upcoming year's HHW Program 
Budget from the JPA Board prior to authorizing company to proceed with continuing 
operations of the HHW program. 

3. The following general categories of expenses are approved for reimbursement under this 
Agreement and will be included in the annual HHW program budget subject to approval by 
the JPA: 

A. Direct labor expenses for personnel working for the Company at the HHWF or the 
Door-to-Door Household Universal Waste Pick-up Program for their time providing 
services under this Agreement. Expenses shall include regular wages, sick pay, 
vacation pay, medical insurance, workers compensation insurance, retirement 
benefits, and payroll taxes, but shall exclude overtime pay and holiday pay. 

B. Company's rental expenses for the 13,755 square feet of leased HHWF at the rate 

of $0.50 per month per square foot ($6,877.00) for the first year, as adj usted 
ammally thereafter on the anniversary of the Agreement by the change in the 
Consumer Price Index, All Urban Consumers, for the San Francisco, Oakland, San 
Jose Metropolitan area. 

C. Legal and professional fees directly related to services provided under this contract. 

D. Expenses related to direct labor persom1el training & education (including travel, 
meals, lodging, etc.) required to provide services under this Agreement. 

Exhibit E 



E. Equipment rental or other charges incurred for equipment used to provide services 
under this Agreement 

F. Waste disposal costs for the transportation and ultimate disposal of the Approved 
Hazardous Waste collected under this Agreement. 

G. Supplies and materials used to collect and safely consolidate materials prior to 
transport. 

H. Protective and safety gear used by the employees. 

I. Other materials and supplies necessary to provide services under this Agreement. 

J. Advertising, promotion and administrative costs related to services provided under 
this Agreement. 

K. Insurance specifically related to the HHW and CESQG programs. 

4. The Company shall be allowed a profit calculated by applying an operating ratio of 90.5% 
to the expenses eligible for reimbursement, not to include the expenses listed below. The 
profit shall be calculated in the following manner (assume costs and expenses of$100,000 
for the month). 

Operating Costs+ Operating Ratio - Operating Costs= Profit 

$100,000.,.. .905 = $110,497 - $100,000 = $10,497 profit 

Rental expenses for the HHWF shall not be included in the Operating Ratio Profit 
Fo1mula. 

5. The Company shall submit to City within the month following the completion of each 
fiscal year a Report detailing the foregoing operating expenses approved for reimbursement 
and the associated profit, less revenues received from Small Quantity Generator Waste 
fees, sales of recycled Approved Hazardous Waste, and BOP and other outside funding 
sources collected by the Company for operating the HHW program. 

Exhibit E 



RESOLUTION NO. 13282 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE THE AMENDED HAZARDOUS WASTE COLLECTION PROGRAM 
AGREEMENT WITH THE MARIN RECYCLING AND RESOURCE 
RECOVERY ASSOCIATION 

WHEREAS, the City Council on September 5, 1995, pursuant to Resolution No. 
9448, approved and entered into a Hazardous Waste Collection Program Agreement, 
dated September 14, 1995, with Matin Recycling and Resource Recovery Association, 
for the establishment and operation of a permanent household hazardous waste collection 
facility and a conditionally exempt small quantity generator waste collection facility at 
565 Jacoby Street in San Rafael; and 

WHEREAS, the City of San Rafael and Matin Recycling and Resource Recovery 
Association have agreed upon the amended agreement to clearly specify responsibilities, 
documentation, and the new Door-to-Door Household Universal Waste Pick-up Program; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City Council approves the waiver of competitive bidding with 
respect to this Agreement pursuant to San Rafael Municipal Code Section 2.55.070 in 
order to allow Marin Recycling and Resource Recovery Association to continue to 
provide the City with the required services at its modernized facility at 565 Jacoby Street, 
in compliance with its funding agreement with the California Integrated Waste 
Management Board. 

NO\V THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the San Rafael City Council 
authorizes and empowers the City Manager of the City of San Rafael to execute in the 
name of the City of San Rafael the Amended Hazardous Waste Collection Program 
Agreement with the Matin Recycling and Resource Recovery Association in a form 
approved by the City Attorney. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of San Rafael 
finds that the actions taken by the Resolution are not subject to the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), pursuant to Article 5, Section 1506l{b) (3) of the 
CEQA Guidelines because there is no possibility that they will have a significant effect 
on the environment as provided by CEQA. The City Clerk is hereby directed to file the 
necessary Notice of Exemption as provided under CEQA. 

I, ESTHER C. BEIRNE, Clerk of the City of San Rafael, hereby certify that the 
foregoing Resolution was d11ly and regt1 larly introduced and adopted at a regular meeting 
of the City Council of said City held on Tuesday, the 17th day of January, 2012 by the 
following vote, to wit: 

[J ORIGINAL 



A YES: COUNCILMEMBERS: Connolly, Heller, Levine, McCullough & Mayor Phillips 

NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS: None 

ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: None 

/2~{/r;,,;z. c:: -&(k. .... , ... , , 
ESTHER C. BEIRNE, City Clerk 







6 
MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 

MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 
 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/473-2391 

 

 
Belvedere 
 
 
Corte Madera 
   
 
County of Marin 
 
 
Fairfax 
  
 
Larkspur 
   
 
Mill Valley 
  
 
Novato 
   
 
Ross 
   
 
San Anselmo 
   
 
San Rafael 
   
 
Sausalito 
 
 
Tiburon

 
 
Date:  April 20, 2023 
 
To: JPA Board of Directors 
 
From: Kimberly Scheibly, Executive Director 
 
Re:   Final SB 1383 Letter Agreements with Member Agencies 
 
Background 
On September 22, 2022, Zero Waste Marin (ZWM) issued a 
request for proposals for SB 1383 Regional Coordination and 
Implementation Plan support. On October 20, 2022, the Board of 
Directors approved an agreement with R3 Consulting Group Inc. 
(R3) to develop recommendations for specific SB 1383 activities to 
be considered by ZWM as well as a draft agreement between the 
member agencies and ZWM to undertake those activities. 
 
As previously reported to the Board, SB 1383 (enacted 2016 and 
effective 2022) placed many requirements on local agencies, which 
are cities, towns, counties, and special districts. By default, local 
agencies are responsible for meeting the requirements of SB 1383; 
however, local agencies may make arrangements for their solid 
waste providers (i.e., haulers) and regional authorities (i.e., joint-
powers authorities such as ZWM) to provide programs and services 
to meet those requirements. 
 
R3’s work focused on the requirements of SB 1383 that, by their 
nature, are either best provided via regional coordination or can be 
provided more cost-effectively on regional scale (instead of 
individually by each local agency). R3 identified four categories of 
activities to be undertaken for the region by ZWM: 
 

1) Technical assistance for outreach, education, and reporting. 
2) Procurement of recovered organic waste products. 
3) Implementation of an edible food recovery program. 
4) Enforcement of the mandatory organics recycling 

requirements adopted by the local agencies. 
 

Specifics relating to each of these four areas of activity are included 
in the final letter agreement (Attachment 1) and final matrix 
delineating responsibilities of ZWM and its member agencies 



Page 2 of 4 

(Attachment 2). A tracked changes version of the final letter agreement compared 
to the March 16, 2023 draft is included as Attachment 3. R3 worked closely with 
ZWM staff, a subcommittee of the Board, and ZWM legal counsel in developing 
these documents.  
 
R3 and the Executive Director presented drafts of the letter agreement and the 
responsibilities matrix to the Board on March 16, 2023. Written comments on the 
documents were also received from some member agencies following the March 
Board meeting. The sections below summarize the revisions that were made, and 
the rationale for those revisions. 
 
ZWM Issuance of Enforcement Penalties and Handling of Appeals 
During the March 16 Board meeting, Board members expressed interest in 
revisions relating to enforcement of the member agencies’ mandatory organics 
recycling requirements. Specifically, the Board expressed interest in having ZWM 
take responsibility for issuance of monetary penalties associated with enforcement 
activities (and the subsequent appeals processes) rather than have those activities 
remain the responsibility of the member agencies. This viewpoint was also 
expressed in written comments received after the Board Meeting. 
 
The letter agreement has been revised accordingly, such that ZWM would take on 
responsibility of issuing monetary penalties and any subsequent appeals process. 
However, the Board should be aware that, for ZWM to successfully take on those 
responsibilities, uniformity of the penalties and appeals process will be necessary. 
It is not realistic or feasible for ZWM to successfully implement 12 different penalty 
and appeal processes per the individual terms and conditions of the member 
agencies.  
 
As a case in point, StopWaste, the solid waste JPA in Alameda County, has the 
responsibility for mandatory ordinance enforcement for members, including 
issuance of penalties and subsequent appeals. StopWaste’s participating 
members have also all opted in, to identical penalty and appeals provisions, such 
that StopWaste’s approach is uniform throughout the County. If the ZWM Board 
maintains that ZWM should be the responsible party for issuance of penalties and 
handling of appeals, uniform amendments to the member agency municipal code 
provisions for mandatory organics recycling enforcement will be necessary.  
 
ZWM Procurement of Compost Meeting Requirements for Members 
Another primary revision to the letter agreement involved the recovered organic 
waste product procurement requirement. The March 16 draft letter agreement 
stated that ZWM would help the member agencies with procurement efforts, but 
that ultimate fulfillment of the requirement would remain with the members. Now, 
the letter agreement would have ZWM purchase recovered organic waste products 



Page 3 of 4 

to fulfill the annual procurement requirement for the member agencies such that no 
other efforts would be necessary at the member agency level.  
 
This revision was made as a result of financial projections prepared by R3 
demonstrating that full compliance with these requirements for all members could 
be accomplished by ZWM at low relative cost. For example, R3’s analysis 
concludes that ZWM could work with an organization like Zero Foodprint 
(https://www.zerofoodprint.org/) to fulfill the requirement at a cost of $140,000 in 
2023, $320,000 in 2024, and $515,000 in 2025 (and thereafter).  
 
These amounts could be offset if the member agencies were to procure compost 
or other recycled organic waste products on their own; however, given ZWM’s 
ability to fund and fulfill the requirements for all members, and the Board’s general 
direction to have ZWM take responsibility for compliance activities where possible, 
planning to fully meet the procurement requirement seemed the most prudent 
pathway.  
 
Other Revisions:  
Other minor revisions to the letter agreement were also made in response to 
comments, including: 
 

• Having ZWM provide a standardized compliant form for use by the member 
agencies. 

• Clarifying that ZWM outreach and education would be provided in English 
and Spanish. 

• Providing clarifications to how ZWM’s monitoring of organic waste 
generators would occur. 

 
 
Upon execution of the letter agreements with the member agencies, the Executive 
Director and R3 will finalize the details of a FY 2023-24 Work Plan (referenced in 
the letter agreement) and associated budget estimates that will be included in the 
proposed FY 2023-24 ZWM Budget. The draft FY 2023-24 budget is planned to be 
presented to the Board during the May Board meeting, and the projected resource 
needs associated with execution of the letter agreements will be included in the 
draft budget.  
 
Recommended Actions:  
In consideration of the above, it is requested that the ZWM Board direct the 
Executive Director to execute the final agreements with the member agencies. 
 
 
 

https://www.zerofoodprint.org/


Page 4 of 4 

Attachments: 
 

1. Final SB 1383 Letter Agreement 
2. Final SB 1383 Responsibilities Matrix 
3. Tracked Changes Version of Final SB 1383 Letter Agreement Compared 

to March 16, 2023 Draft 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Board Chair:  Please confirm the vote on this item by reading the following items out 
loud after the vote. 
 
 
Motion:       Second:       
 
Ayes:             
   
              
 
Noes:              
 
              
 
Abstentions:             
 
 
 

 



 

[Jurisdiction Letterhead] 
 
 

[Date] 
 
Kimberly Scheibly,  
Executive Director 
Zero Waste Marin 
 
San Rafael, CA  
 
Dear Kimberly: 
 
CCR, Section 18981.2 allows a local jurisdiction to make arrangements with a public or private 
designee to carry out some of the MEMBER’s SB 1383 responsibilities. One exception to this is 
that a private entity may not be designated to impose civil penalties.  Per the MEMBER’s adopted 
Ordinance #______,  the MEMBER’s Governing Board of the  [_______] has authorized the Marin 
County Hazardous and Solid Waste Management Joint Powers Authority, also known as Zero 
Waste Marin (ZWM) to be a designee, under the condition that it agree to such, for the purposes of 
carrying out various responsibilities in connection with the MEMBER’s compliance with the SB 
1383 regulations.  If ZWM agrees to accept that authority and designation on the terms below, 
please sign a copy of this letter, and return it to me.   

On behalf of MEMBER, ZWM has agreed to implement the SB 1383 actions outlined in this letter. 
Specifics regarding programs and services provided by ZWM shall be detailed in an annual SB 
1383 Work Plan reviewed and approved by the Board with its annual budget. These actions shall be 
reviewed at least annually and may be updated as the workplan is revised. 

 

1. Technical Assistance 

A. Education and Outreach   

ZWM shall conduct the following education and outreach on behalf of the 
MEMBER.  ZWM shall maintain and annually update on its website general 
information on how to comply with SB 1383 regulations, including the 
following. The following information shall be provided in English and Spanish.  
This may be in addition to similar information provided by the MEMBER and 
the haulers, on their websites. 

a) Information on organic waste generators’ requirements to properly 
separate materials in appropriate containers as required by 14 
CCR18985.1 (1)  

b) Information on methods for the prevention of organic waste generation, 
recycling organic waste on-site, sending organic waste to community 
composting, as required by 14 CCR18985.1 (2) 



 

c) Information regarding methane reduction benefits of reducing landfill 
disposal of organic waste, as required by14 CCR18985.1 (3) 

d) Information related to the public health and safety and environmental 
impacts associated with the landfill disposal of organic waste, as required 
by 14 CCR18985.1 (5) 

e) Information regarding programs for the donation of edible food as 
required by 14 CCR18985.1 (6) 

f) Information regarding self-hauling requirements required by 14 
CCR18985.1(7) 

g) ZWM’s website shall include information on a)-f) above as required by 
14 CCR 18985.1, as well as a list of haulers, organics processing 
facilities, and food recovery organizations and services operating in the 
County as required by14 CCR18985.2  

B. Reporting 
 

a) ZWM shall develop and submit the organic waste recycling capacity 
Report required under 14 CCR18992.1 and the edible food capacity 
report under the prescribed schedule in 14 CCR18992.3. If insufficient 
organics processing or edible food processing capacity is identified, 
ZWM shall notify the MEMBER and work with the MEMBER to create 
an implementation plan to expand capacity as required by 14 
CCR18992.1(d).  ZWM shall conduct community outreach regarding 
locations being considered for new or expanded facilities, operations, or 
activities to seek feedback on the benefits and impacts that may be 
associated with new or expanded facilities, operations, or activities as 
required by 14 CCR18992.1 (c)(3). 

 
b) ZWM shall submit the MEMBER annual reports to CalRecycle required 

under 14 CCR 18994.1 and 18994.2. ZWM shall provide a draft copy of 
such reports to the MEMBER’s representative for its review and approval 
at least 14 days prior to the applicable reporting deadlines set forth in 
these sections. Such reports are due on or before August 1 each year, , 
starting on August 1, 2023, covering the entire previous calendar year. 

 
c) The MEMBER shall be responsible for requiring that their hauler and/or 

facility provide the needed information to ZWM for the annual report in a 
timely manner as requested by ZWM. The MEMBER shall request their 
haulers/facilities to input required information into a ZWM approved 
spreadsheet template or into an online database for ZWM to use/access on 
a schedule to be provided by ZWM, and to provide other needed 
information for annual reporting.   The MEMBER shall also be 
responsible for providing the following information to ZWM using an 



 

approved spreadsheet template or into an online database for ZWM to 
use/access for the annual report, on a timely basis, as requested by ZWM, 
but no later than June 1 of each year: 
 

1. Number of projects subject to the Model Water Efficient 
Landscape Ordinance (MWELO) as required by 14 
CCR18989.2  

2. Number of construction and demolition debris removal 
activities conducted in compliance with CALGreen as 
required by 14 CCR18989.1  

3. Tons of organic waste product (SB 1383 eligible) procured as 
required by 14 CCR 18993.1  

4. Documentation and labels of recycled content products 
purchased that meet the 30% post-consumer recycled content 
requirement as required by 14 CCR18993.3  

5. Education/outreach conducted, in addition to that provided by 
the hauler, if any 

6. Waivers issued by the MEMBER 
7. Complaints received and investigated 

d) The MEMBER shall be responsible for maintaining their own required 
implementation record as required under14 CCR 18995.2. 

e) The MEMBER shall be responsible for maintaining Waiver 
evaluation/approval as required under 14 CCR 18984.11. 

f) The MEMBER shall be responsible for a self-haul program and shall 
maintain a copy of requirements for self-haulers and any documentation 
required from self-haulers as required under14 CCR 18988.3. 

2. Recovered Organic Waste Product Procurement 
 

A. ZWM shall partner with the MEMBER and facilitate the procurement of  
all of their required organic waste product procurement target under SB 
1383. ZWM shall work with MEMBER to identify sites for usage of 
compost allocation provided by franchise agreements as required by 14 
CCR 18993.1.  

B. ZWM shall investigate opportunities for procurement projects for 
adoption by interested MEMBERS, including the potential to procure 
compost through a compost application broker, which may be used inside 
or outside of the County, and the potential to work with Marin Municipal 
Water District, via direct service provider agreements, to obtain credit for 
mulch purchased through their lawn to garden programs. ZWM shall also 
work with each MEMBER to coordinate potential uses of compost 
resulting from ZWM’s current project with PlaceWorks.    



 

C. ZWM shall investigate sites where compost and mulch could be applied 
in the County. ZWM shall investigate the potential for projects to be 
structured in such a way that could allow ZWM to procure the compost 
on behalf of each MEMBER.  The MEMBER would then obtain 
procurement credit for a share of qualifying recovered organic waste 
products procured by ZWM.  Shares would be allocated based on 
population. ZWM shall provide additional information on these projects 
as it becomes available.   

D. ZWM anticipates being able to help the MEMBER fully meet their target 
through these efforts and MEMBER should also pursue their own efforts 
to procure organic waste products through activities such as compost 
giveaways and establishing community compost hubs and or direct 
service provider contracts to procure organic waste products on behalf of 
the MEMBER.  

E. MEMBER shall be responsible for the purchase of recycled content paper 
and the maintenance of those records within the implementation record as 
required by 14 CCR 18993.3 (b & c) 

3. Edible Food Recovery Program 
 
A. ZWM shall coordinate and implement the SB 1383 Regulations’ edible food 
recovery program requirements to which jurisdictions are subject under 14 CCR 
18991.1–18991.2. The Parties agree that these requirements may be wholly or 
partially satisfied by agreement with the County or other third parties. ZWM’s duties 
shall include but are not limited to:  identification of tier 1 and 2 generators, 
assessment of existing capacity for Edible Food recovery, inspection of commercial 
edible food generators for compliance, and enforcement.  

a) Outreach to tier 1 and 2 generators.  
 
ZWM shall identify a public or private entity to conduct outreach to tier 1 
and 2 generators on their responsibilities to donate edible food and/or conduct 
electronic outreach to such generators. 
 

b) Compliance monitoring and inspections of tier 1 and tier 2 generators.  
 
ZWM shall identify a public or private entity to monitor compliance by 
conducting inspections of tier 1 generators beginning as soon as such an 
agreement is finalized, and tier 2 generators beginning January 1, 2024.  

 
c) Enforcement of violations by tier 1 and 2 generators.  

 
ZWM shall identify a public or private entity to draft notices of violation as 
appropriate, for final issuance by the MEMBER.   

 



 

B.ZWM shall work to find a partner to implement the above activities as part of a 
Countywide edible food recovery program on behalf of its MEMBER.  Such a 
partner could be the County Environmental Health Department, if they are amenable 
to an agreement or a private consultant, or both for different tasks. Agreements may 
take the form of an MOU or other written agreement that ZWM would help to 
facilitate between the contracted party and the MEMBER for implementation of an 
inspection and enforcement program for commercial edible food generators and food 
recovery organizations and services.  
 

4. Enforcement 

A. ZWM shall function as a designated SB 1383 enforcement representative for the 
MEMBERS by performing the following actions: 

a) Monitoring: Monitoring compliance of commercial generators, commercial 
edible food generators, food recovery organizations and food recovery 
services. Monitoring will be conducted based on reports of potential non-
compliance reported to ZWM by MEMBER, MEMBER’S solid waste hauler, 
anonymous complaint forms, and/or by the entity engaged by ZWM to 
conduct Edible Food Recovery Program services per Section 3. It is 
anticipated that reports of potential non-compliance will be based on 
inspections conducted in accordance with SB 1383 Regulations 14 CCR 
18995.1 by MEMBER, MEMBER’S solid waste hauler, and/or by the entity 
engaged by ZWM to conduct Edible Food Recovery Program services per 
Section 3.  ZWM may collaborate with MEMBER and/or a hauler in such 
inspections, where appropriate; and 

b) Notices of Violation: Issuing notice of violations to commercial generators, 
commercial edible food generators, haulers, food recovery organizations and 
food recovery services, based on reports provided by the entities conducting 
the inspections, including haulers, contractors and other public entities. These 
notices of violation may be drafted by a contracted third party or other public 
entity who has conducted such inspections identifying such violation. A copy 
of any notices of violations issued shall be provided to MEMBER within ten 
(10) working days of issuance and the notice of violation shall be 
documented in the implementation record.  ZWM may collaborate with 
MEMBER and/or a hauler before issuance of a notice of violation where 
appropriate.  It shall not be appropriate to collaborate with a hauler where it is 
the subject of the enforcement action. If the violator fails to comply with the 
notice of violation within the deadline set forth therein, ZWM shall refer the 
matter to MEMBER to impose penalties pursuant to the SB 1383 regulations 
and the MEMBER’s own SB 1383 ordinance and the MEMBER shall 
function as the enforcement entity in that matter thereafter. One possible 
exception to this is enforcement of commercial edible food generator 
violations which may be conducted by the Department of Environmental 
Health under a yet to be agreed upon MOU for such services.  



 

c) Emergency Circumstances – Waivers for MEMBER: ZWM shall notify 
CalRecycle and apply for a waiver to landfill organics if MEMBER 
experiences a natural disaster, uses a recyclable materials or Organic Waste 
processing facility that has a temporary operational failure, or unforeseen 
operational restrictions have been imposed upon it by a regulatory MEMBER 
pursuant to 14 CCR 18984.13. 

d) MEMBER shall develop and maintain an anonymous complaint form and 
submittal process for submittal of complaints relating to SB 1383 violations 
as required by 14 CCR 18995.3.  Valid complaints shall be submitted to 
ZWM for investigation and resolution. ZWM shall develop an anonymous 
complaint form portal that can be linked to on MEMBER websites for 
MEMBERS to consolidate the complaint submittal process. 

The MEMBER understands that ZWM’s acceptance of the MEMBER’s authorization and 
performance of the tasks above is conditioned on the following: 
 
1. MEMBER cooperation. The MEMBER shall cooperate in good faith with the ZWM in 

administering implementation of the SB 1383 Regulations. This may include cooperating on the 
development of processes for implementation activities, distribution of educational materials, 
and data exchange.  
 

2. MEMBER responsibility. MEMBER shall be responsible for all other applicable SB 1383 
requirements not expressly delegated to and accepted by ZWM as set forth herein, including 
those in the annual Work Plan. If the MEMBER requests that ZWM accept an additional SB 
1383 regulatory responsibility or perform an additional requirement, the Parties shall meet and 
confer regarding the request and implementation, if ZWM is willing to do so. The MEMBER 
understands that in accordance with section 18981.2 (c) of the SB 1383 Regulations, the 
MEMBER remains ultimately responsible for compliance with the requirements of the SB1383 
Regulations. 

 
3. Sharing of information. Within thirty (30) days of a request by ZWM, or as soon thereafter as 

such information is available to MEMBER, the MEMBER shall share with ZWM all data, 
documents, contact information for commercial edible food generators within its jurisdiction, or 
any other information necessary for ZWM to carry out the responsibilities delegated to it in this 
MOU. 

 
4. Staffing and funding; coordination of work; reimbursement of MEMBER for performance of 

work. In order for ZWM to carry out its responsibilities in connection with the administration 
and implementation of the SB 1383 Regulations as specified in this letter of designation, the 
parties agree that ZWM’s costs associated with its responsibilities under this letter and the other 
letters of designation shall be funded through ZWM’s budget and rate setting process, except as 
otherwise specified herein.  These costs may include ZWM’s cost to engage independent 
contractors to perform some or all of the duties delegated to it herein and to develop agreements. 
Budget changes related to this letter shall be integrated into ZWM’s regular budget process, as 
approved by the Board of Directors. 



 

5. Liabilities and Penalties. For avoidance of doubt, the MEMBERS and ZWM hereby indicate 
that any liabilities and penalties arising from SB 1383 regulations requirements shall not be 
payable by ZWM or the County as ZWM’s host MEMBER.  The MEMBER is responsible for 
any failure to meet their obligations stated in the SB 1383 Regulations. 

Nothing in this Section shall prevent either the MEMBER or ZWM from challenging CalRecycle 
enforcement activities. In the event that the MEMBER or ZWM intends to challenge CalRecycle’s 
imposition of a penalty imposed on the MEMBER, the MEMBER shall reasonably cooperate and 
assist ZWM in its legal challenge.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the MEMBER 
shall promptly share any notices of violation or accusation issued pursuant to 14 CCR 18997.5 that 
it receives related to any alleged violations.  

6. The MEMBER or ZWM may terminate this agreement upon 180 days’ notice in writing to the 
other party, at which time the parties shall consider negotiation of a new agreement if such 
negotiations have not already commenced. 

7. The primary representatives of the parties for administration of this agreement are:   

 
  MEMBER ZWM 

Primary 
Representative: 

 Kimberly Scheibly 
Executive Director 

Address:   
Telephone:   
E-mail:   

 
The names and contact information of primary representative may be updated by notice from a 
party to the other party.  All communications by a party to another party shall be in writing and 
shall be effective upon (i) receipt of an e-mail confirming receipt of the initial communication if 
sent by e-mail, (ii) personal delivery or by express delivery or courier to the address set forth above, 
or (ii) when deposited in the U.S. Mail, first class, registered or certified mail, return receipt 
requested, to the address set forth above. 

We look forward to working with the ZWM on this important undertaking. 
 
Signed on behalf of MEMBER agency by, 
 
_________________________ 
[Print Name], MEMBER Manager, Zero Waste Marin Board Member 
 
 
Accepted and agreed: 
 
__________________________     ______________ 
Kimberly Scheibly, Executive Director     Date 
Zero Waste Marin 



SB 1383 MOU Responsibilities Matrix
March 2023

Section Reference Requirement Type ZW Marin Responsibility MEMBER Responsibility Hauler Responsibility

Technical Assistance

18984.5 (b)-(c) Contamination 
Monitoring/Waste Evaluation N/A Require haulers to perform route reviews or waste 

evaluations via franchise agreement

Conduct route reviews on a regular basis to verify 
compliance.  Provide education to  non-compliant 
generators. Notify ZWM and MEMBER of 
contamination records and keep record of route 
reviews.

18985.1 (a)(1-7) Education and Oureach 
Annual Notice 

Provide standardized annual notice information on 
the ZWM website for MEMBERS, Special Districts 
and haulers to link to.

Require haulers to provide annual notice all 
customers and include all annual notice details on 
their websites via franchise agreement.  MEMBERS 
should also post annual notice information on their 
websites and through community outreach avenues.

Provide annual notice to all generators at least once 
annually through newletters, mailings, billings and 
website outreach

18985.2 Edible Food Recovery
Develop and maintain list of food recovery agencies 
and food recovery services on ZWM's edible food 
recovery webpage

Link to ZW Marin's edible food recovery webpage or 
develop own webpage to meet requirements N/A

18992.1 (d) Organic Waste Recycling 
Capacity Planning

Conducted initial analysis verifying currently 
capacity.  Conduct analysis again in 2024, 2029 and  
2034

Respond to ZWM data request for analysis in 2024, 
2029 and 2034

 Respond to ZWM data request for analysis in 2024, 
2029 and 2034

18992.2 (c) Edible Food Recovery 
Capacity Planning

Conducted initial analysis.  Update/expand while 
developing Edible Food Recovery Program . 
Conduct analysis again in 2024, 2029 and  2034

Respond to ZWM data request for analysis in 2024, 
2029 and 2034

Respond to ZWM data request for analysis in 2024, 
2029 and 2034

18994.2 (a) Reporting
Compile Information from haulers, MEMBERS and 
Special Districts to report to CalRecycle by August 
1st

Respond to ZW Marin Electronic Annual Report 
Data request each June 1st

Respond to ZW Marin Electronic Annual Report 
Data request each June 1st 

18989.1(a) Enforceable Ordinance

Provide support for MEMBERS' CalGreen 
Programs. Solicit Reporting numbers from 
MEMBERS as part of Electronic Annual Report 
Process

MEMBERS facilitate CalGreen Construction and 
Demolition Diversion Programs, track compliant 
programs and provde data to ZWM for Electronic 
Annual Report

Provide Agencies with weight tags and respond to 
Construction and Demolition questions from 
Agencies and ZW Marin

18989.2(a) Enforceable Ordinance
Request MWELO information from MMWD annually 
to be included in Electronic Annual Report to 
CalRecycle

MEMBERS to identify MWELO projects and work 
with MMWD to ensure compliance process is 
working

N/A



Section Reference Requirement Type ZW Marin Responsibility MEMBER Responsibility Hauler Responsibility

18995.2 Implementation Record

Provide implementation record tracking template for 
data to be entered into directly or to be used with 
tracking software to all MEMBERS and Special 
Districts, maintain regional aspects of records, and 
work with MEMBERS, Special Districts and haulers 
to coordinate submittal of required information

Maintain implementation record, including copies of 
ordinances, agreements, procurement record, 
waivers, and MEMBER provided educational 
outreach

Respond to ZWM Requests for data that needs to 
be uploaded to the implemenation record

18984.11 Waivers

Provide implementation record tracking template for 
data to be enetered into directly or to be used with 
tracking software to MEMBERS and Special 
Districts to track waivers

Provide follow up inspection of generator and issue 
waivers to those generators

Provide recommendations of generators that qualify 
for a waiver and/or evaluation of generators that 
requested waiver

18988.3 Self hauling Provide electronic implementation record for 
recordkeeping and tracking

Maintain requirements for self haulers and any 
documentation required from self haulers N/A

Recovered Organic Waste Product Procurement

18993.1 (a) (e) Recovered Organic Waste 
Product Procurement

ZWM shall budget and plan to meet the Recovered 
Organic Waste Product Procurement Requirement 
on behalf of MEMBERs.  Coordinate Placeworks 
contract analyzing compost application sites in 
Marin County. Budget for procurement of Recovered 
Organic Waste Products for use and distribution on 
behalf of the MEMBERS. ZWM to provide MEMBER 
with tools, grant funds, and potential strategies to 
assist in meeting compliance target.

MEMBERS shall use of recovered organic waste 
products and encourage community use of those 
products, institute Direct Service Provider 
Agreements for compost application, and have 
hauler provide qualified compost annually to help 
meet target via franchise agreement.  MEMBER 
shall document all procurement of compost and 
applied uses to supplement/offset Recovered 
Organic Waste Products Procured by ZWM.

Provide Qualified Compost to MEMBERS as 
directed by franchise agreements

18993.3 (b & c) Recycled Paper Content 
Procurement

Provide implementation record software to 
MEMBERS and Special Districts to record where 
labels and receipts are saved

Buy recycled content paper and janitorial supplies 
and keep records, labels and receipts in a 
designated location.

N/A

Edible Food Recovery Program

18985.2 (a) Edible Food Recovery
Develop and maintain list of food recovery agencies 
and food recovery services on ZWM's edible food 
recovery webpage

Link to ZW Marin's edible food recovery webpage or 
develop own webpage to meet requirements N/A

18985.1 (a) Organic Waste Generators & 
Edible Food Recovery

Provide annual notice SB1383 requirements on 
website for MEMBERS and Special Districts to link 
to

Include annual notice requirement via franchise 
agreement 

Provide annual notice to all generators at least once 
annually through newletters, mailings, billings and 
website outreach

18991.1 Edible Food Recovery

Develop an edible food recovery program though 
use of an outside contractor or through a contract 
with the County's Department of Environmental 
Health.

Provide ZWM with records of tier 1 generator 
inspections and outreach already conducted

Assist in development and maintenance of tier 1 and 
tier 2 generator lists

Enforcement

18995.1 (a) (1) (A) Enforcement Include required hauler data in the Electronic Annual 
Report.

Require haulers to conduct annual compliance 
review via franchise agreement

Perform compliance review and site visits to non 
compliant accounts.



Section Reference Requirement Type ZW Marin Responsibility MEMBER Responsibility Hauler Responsibility

18995.1 (a) (2) Enforcement

Partner with the County Department of 
Environmental Health or an outside contractor to 
develop the edible food recovery program and 
perform inspections of generators.

Provide ZWM with records of tier 1 generator 
inspections and outreach already conducted N/A

18995.1 (a) (3) Enforcement

ZWM shall develop a consolidated anonymous 
complaint form for MEMBERS to link to.  ZWM 
enforcement coordination can be brought into this 
process when MEMBER, Special District or hauler 
need assistance.

Develop link to ZWM consolidated anonymous 
complaint form on website for reporting of non-
compliance with SB 1383.  Ensure follow up on 
complaints occur within 90 days.

Provide current service levels and records for any 
complaints. Assist MEMBER/ZWM with follow up 
with generators.

18995.1 (a) (4) Enforcement

Provide implementation record tracking template for 
data to be entered into directly or to be used with 
tracking software to MEMBERS and Special 
Districts to track violations and outreach conducted.

Require hauler to provide outreach to generators 
that have violations via franchise agreement.  

Provide applicable educational outreach to 
generators that have been identified as having 
violations.

18995.1 (a) (5) Enforcement Issue NOV's for non compliance through a staff 
position, outside contractor or designated MEMBER.

MEMBERS must issue any penalties for non 
compliance beyond the required compliance date.

Respond to ZWM data request for about potential 
violations. Notify MEMBER and ZWM of potential 
violations

18995.1 (a) (6) Enforcement

Provide implementation record  tracking template for 
data to be entered into directly or to be used with 
tracking software to MEMBERS and Special 
Districts to track waivers.

Provided updated service level lists for generators 
that have a waiver.

Provided updated service level lists for generators 
that have a waiver.

18995.1 (b) Enforcement
Compile MEMBER, Special District and hauler data 
and report on number of route reviews conducted in 
the Electronic Annual Report

Require hauler to conduct route reviews through 
Franchise Agreeement Language.  Check with 
hauler to ensure route reviews are being conducted 
regularly.

Conduct route reviews on a regular basis to verify 
compliance.  Provide education to  non-compliant 
generators. Notify ZWM and MEMBER of 
contamination records and keep record of route 
reviews.

18995.3 Enforcement

Provide implementation record  tracking template for 
data to be entered into directly or to be used with 
tracking software to MEMBERS and Special 
Districts to track complaints. Develop enforcement 
procedures and process for issuing NOV's for non 
compliance.

Provide a procedure for receipt and investigation of 
anonymous written complaints.  Track complaint 
resolution, educational materials distributed, and 
provide any NOV's issued in Implementation Record 
Software

Provided updated service level lists for generators 
that have a waiver.



 

[Jurisdiction Letterhead] 
 
 

[Date] 
 
Kimberly Scheibly,  
Executive Director 
Zero Waste Marin 
 
San Rafael, CA  
 
Dear Kimberly: 
 
CCR, Section 18981.2 allows a local jurisdiction to make arrangements with a public or private 
designee to carry out some of the MEMBER’s SB 1383 responsibilities. One exception to this is 
that a private entity may not be designated to impose civil penalties.  Per the MEMBER’s adopted 
Ordinance #______,  the MEMBER’s Governing Board of the  [_______] has authorized the Marin 
County Hazardous and Solid Waste Management Joint Powers Authority, also known as Zero 
Waste Marin (ZWM) to be a designee, under the condition that it agree to such, for the purposes of 
carrying out various responsibilities in connection with the MEMBER’s compliance with the SB 
1383 regulations.  If ZWM agrees to accept that authority and designation on the terms below, 
please sign a copy of this letter, and return it to me.   

On behalf of MEMBER, ZWM has agreed to implement the SB 1383 actions outlined in this letter. 
Specifics regarding programs and services provided by ZWM shall be detailed in an annual SB 
1383 Work Plan reviewed and approved by the Board with its annual budget. These actions shall be 
reviewed at least annually and may be updated as the workplan is revised. 

 

1. Technical Assistance 

A. Education and Outreach   

ZWM shall conduct the following education and outreach on behalf of the 
MEMBER.  ZWM shall maintain and annually update on its website general 
information on how to comply with SB 1383 regulations, including the 
following. The following information shall be provided in English and Spanish.  
This may be in addition to similar information provided by the MEMBER and 
the haulers, on their websites. 

a) Information on organic waste generators’ requirements to properly 
separate materials in appropriate containers as required by 14 
CCR18985.1 (1)  

b) Information on methods for the prevention of organic waste generation, 
recycling organic waste on-site, sending organic waste to community 
composting, as required by 14 CCR18985.1 (2) 



 

c) Information regarding methane reduction benefits of reducing landfill 
disposal of organic waste, as required by14 CCR18985.1 (3) 

d) Information related to the public health and safety and environmental 
impacts associated with the landfill disposal of organic waste, as required 
by 14 CCR18985.1 (5) 

e) Information regarding programs for the donation of edible food as 
required by 14 CCR18985.1 (6) 

f) Information regarding self-hauling requirements required by 14 
CCR18985.1(7) 

g) ZWM’s website shall include information on a)-f) above as required by 
14 CCR 18985.1, as well as a list of haulers, organics processing 
facilities, and food recovery organizations and services operating in the 
County as required by14 CCR18985.2  

B. Reporting 
 

a) ZWM shall develop and submit the organic waste recycling capacity 
Report required under 14 CCR18992.1 and the edible food capacity 
report under the prescribed schedule in 14 CCR18992.3. If insufficient 
organics processing or edible food processing capacity is identified, 
ZWM shall notify the MEMBER and work with the MEMBER to create 
an implementation plan to expand capacity as required by 14 
CCR18992.1(d).  ZWM shall conduct community outreach regarding 
locations being considered for new or expanded facilities, operations, or 
activities to seek feedback on the benefits and impacts that may be 
associated with new or expanded facilities, operations, or activities as 
required by 14 CCR18992.1 (c)(3). 

 
b) ZWM shall submit the MEMBER annual reports to CalRecycle required 

under 14 CCR 18994.1 and 18994.2. ZWM shall provide a draft copy of 
such reports to the MEMBER’s representative for its review and approval 
at least 14 days prior to the applicable reporting deadlines set forth in 
these sections. Such reports are due on or before August 1 each year, , 
starting on August 1, 2023, covering the entire previous calendar year. 

 
c) The MEMBER shall be responsible for requiring that their hauler and/or 

facility provide the needed information to ZWM for the annual report in a 
timely manner as requested by ZWM. The MEMBER shall request their 
haulers/facilities to input required information into a ZWM approved 
spreadsheet template or into an online database for ZWM to use/access on 
a schedule to be provided by ZWM, and to provide other needed 
information for annual reporting.   The MEMBER shall also be 
responsible for providing the following information to ZWM using an 



 

approved spreadsheet template or into an online database for ZWM to 
use/access for the annual report, on a timely basis, as requested by ZWM, 
but no later than June 1 of each year: 
 

1. Number of projects subject to the Model Water Efficient 
Landscape Ordinance (MWELO) as required by 14 
CCR18989.2  

2. Number of construction and demolition debris removal 
activities conducted in compliance with CALGreen as 
required by 14 CCR18989.1  

3. Tons of organic waste product (SB 1383 eligible) procured as 
required by 14 CCR 18993.1  

4. Documentation and labels of recycled content products 
purchased that meet the 30% post-consumer recycled content 
requirement as required by 14 CCR18993.3  

5. Education/outreach conducted, in addition to that provided by 
the hauler, if any 

6. Waivers issued by the MEMBER 
7. Complaints received and investigated 

d) The MEMBER shall be responsible for maintaining their own required 
implementation record as required under14 CCR 18995.2. 

e) The MEMBER shall be responsible for maintaining Waiver 
evaluation/approval as required under 14 CCR 18984.11. 

f) The MEMBER shall be responsible for a self-haul program and shall 
maintain a copy of requirements for self-haulers and any documentation 
required from self-haulers as required under14 CCR 18988.3. 

2. Recovered Organic Waste Product Procurement 
 

A. ZWM shall partner with the MEMBER and facilitate the procurement of  
all of their required organic waste product procurement target under SB 
1383. ZWM shall work with MEMBER to identify sites for usage of 
compost allocation provided by franchise agreements as required by 14 
CCR 18993.1.  

B. ZWM shall investigate opportunities for procurement projects for 
adoption by interested MEMBERS, including the potential to procure 
compost through a compost application broker, which may be used inside 
or outside of the County, and the potential to work with Marin Municipal 
Water District, via direct service provider agreements, to obtain credit for 
mulch purchased through their lawn to garden programs. ZWM shall also 
work with each MEMBER to coordinate potential uses of compost 
resulting from ZWM’s current project with PlaceWorks.    



 

C. ZWM shall investigate sites where compost and mulch could be applied 
in the County. ZWM shall investigate the potential for projects to be 
structured in such a way that could allow ZWM to procure the compost 
on behalf of each MEMBER.  The MEMBER would then obtain 
procurement credit for a share of qualifying recovered organic waste 
products procured by ZWM.  Shares would be allocated based on 
population. ZWM shall provide additional information on these projects 
as it becomes available.   

D. ZWM anticipates being able to help the MEMBER fully meet their target 
through these efforts and MEMBER should also pursue their own efforts 
to procure organic waste products through activities such as compost 
giveaways and establishing community compost hubs and or direct 
service provider contracts to procure organic waste products on behalf of 
the MEMBER.  

E. MEMBER shall be responsible for the purchase of recycled content paper 
and the maintenance of those records within the implementation record as 
required by 14 CCR 18993.3 (b & c) 

3. Edible Food Recovery Program 
 
A. ZWM shall coordinate and implement the SB 1383 Regulations’ edible food 
recovery program requirements to which jurisdictions are subject under 14 CCR 
18991.1–18991.2. The Parties agree that these requirements may be wholly or 
partially satisfied by agreement with the County or other third parties. ZWM’s duties 
shall include but are not limited to:  identification of tier 1 and 2 generators, 
assessment of existing capacity for Edible Food recovery, inspection of commercial 
edible food generators for compliance, and enforcement.  

a) Outreach to tier 1 and 2 generators.  
 
ZWM shall identify a public or private entity to conduct outreach to tier 1 
and 2 generators on their responsibilities to donate edible food and/or conduct 
electronic outreach to such generators. 
 

b) Compliance monitoring and inspections of tier 1 and tier 2 generators.  
 
ZWM shall identify a public or private entity to monitor compliance by 
conducting inspections of tier 1 generators beginning as soon as such an 
agreement is finalized, and tier 2 generators beginning January 1, 2024.  

 
c) Enforcement of violations by tier 1 and 2 generators.  

 
ZWM shall identify a public or private entity to draft notices of violation as 
appropriate, for final issuance by the MEMBER.   

 



 

B.ZWM shall work to find a partner to implement the above activities as part of a 
Countywide edible food recovery program on behalf of its MEMBER.  Such a 
partner could be the County Environmental Health Department, if they are amenable 
to an agreement or a private consultant, or both for different tasks. Agreements may 
take the form of an MOU or other written agreement that ZWM would help to 
facilitate between the contracted party and the MEMBER for implementation of an 
inspection and enforcement program for commercial edible food generators and food 
recovery organizations and services.  
 

4. Enforcement 

A. ZWM shall function as a designated SB 1383 enforcement representative for the 
MEMBERS by performing the following actions: 

a) Monitoring: Monitoring compliance of commercial generators, commercial 
edible food generators, food recovery organizations and food recovery 
services. Monitoring will be conducted based on reports of potential non-
compliance reported to ZWM by MEMBER, MEMBER’S solid waste hauler, 
anonymous complaint forms, and/or by the entity engaged by ZWM to 
conduct Edible Food Recovery Program services per Section 3. It is 
anticipated that reports of potential non-compliance will be based on 
inspections conducted in accordance with SB 1383 Regulations 14 CCR 
18995.1 by MEMBER, MEMBER’S solid waste hauler, and/or by the entity 
engaged by ZWM to conduct Edible Food Recovery Program services per 
Section 3.  ZWM may collaborate with MEMBER and/or a hauler in such 
inspections, where appropriate; and 

b) Notices of Violation: Issuing notice of violations to commercial generators, 
commercial edible food generators, haulers, food recovery organizations and 
food recovery services, based on reports provided by the entities conducting 
the inspections, including haulers, contractors and other public entities. These 
notices of violation may be drafted by a contracted third party or other public 
entity who has conducted such inspections identifying such violation. A copy 
of any notices of violations issued shall be provided to MEMBER within ten 
(10) working days of issuance and the notice of violation shall be 
documented in the implementation record.  ZWM may collaborate with 
MEMBER and/or a hauler before issuance of a notice of violation where 
appropriate.  It shall not be appropriate to collaborate with a hauler where it is 
the subject of the enforcement action. If the violator fails to comply with the 
notice of violation within the deadline set forth therein, ZWM shall refer the 
matter to MEMBER to impose penalties pursuant to the SB 1383 regulations 
and the MEMBER’s own SB 1383 ordinance and the MEMBER shall 
function as the enforcement entity in that matter thereafter. One possible 
exception to this is enforcement of commercial edible food generator 
violations which may be conducted by the Department of Environmental 
Health under a yet to be agreed upon MOU for such services.  



 

c) Emergency Circumstances – Waivers for MEMBER: ZWM shall notify 
CalRecycle and apply for a waiver to landfill organics if MEMBER 
experiences a natural disaster, uses a recyclable materials or Organic Waste 
processing facility that has a temporary operational failure, or unforeseen 
operational restrictions have been imposed upon it by a regulatory MEMBER 
pursuant to 14 CCR 18984.13. 

d) MEMBER shall develop and maintain an anonymous complaint form and 
submittal process for submittal of complaints relating to SB 1383 violations 
as required by 14 CCR 18995.3.  Valid complaints shall be submitted to 
ZWM for investigation and resolution. ZWM shall develop an anonymous 
complaint form portal that can be linked to on MEMBER websites for 
MEMBERS to consolidate the complaint submittal process. 

The MEMBER understands that ZWM’s acceptance of the MEMBER’s authorization and 
performance of the tasks above is conditioned on the following: 
 
1. MEMBER cooperation. The MEMBER shall cooperate in good faith with the ZWM in 

administering implementation of the SB 1383 Regulations. This may include cooperating on the 
development of processes for implementation activities, distribution of educational materials, 
and data exchange.  
 

2. MEMBER responsibility. MEMBER shall be responsible for all other applicable SB 1383 
requirements not expressly delegated to and accepted by ZWM as set forth herein, including 
those in the annual Work Plan. If the MEMBER requests that ZWM accept an additional SB 
1383 regulatory responsibility or perform an additional requirement, the Parties shall meet and 
confer regarding the request and implementation, if ZWM is willing to do so. The MEMBER 
understands that in accordance with section 18981.2 (c) of the SB 1383 Regulations, the 
MEMBER remains ultimately responsible for compliance with the requirements of the SB1383 
Regulations. 

 
3. Sharing of information. Within thirty (30) days of a request by ZWM, or as soon thereafter as 

such information is available to MEMBER, the MEMBER shall share with ZWM all data, 
documents, contact information for commercial edible food generators within its jurisdiction, or 
any other information necessary for ZWM to carry out the responsibilities delegated to it in this 
MOU. 

 
4. Staffing and funding; coordination of work; reimbursement of MEMBER for performance of 

work. In order for ZWM to carry out its responsibilities in connection with the administration 
and implementation of the SB 1383 Regulations as specified in this letter of designation, the 
parties agree that ZWM’s costs associated with its responsibilities under this letter and the other 
letters of designation shall be funded through ZWM’s budget and rate setting process, except as 
otherwise specified herein.  These costs may include ZWM’s cost to engage independent 
contractors to perform some or all of the duties delegated to it herein and to develop agreements. 
Budget changes related to this letter shall be integrated into ZWM’s regular budget process, as 
approved by the Board of Directors. 



 

5. Liabilities and Penalties. For avoidance of doubt, the MEMBERS and ZWM hereby indicate 
that any liabilities and penalties arising from SB 1383 regulations requirements shall not be 
payable by ZWM or the County as ZWM’s host MEMBER.  The MEMBER is responsible for 
any failure to meet their obligations stated in the SB 1383 Regulations. 

Nothing in this Section shall prevent either the MEMBER or ZWM from challenging CalRecycle 
enforcement activities. In the event that the MEMBER or ZWM intends to challenge CalRecycle’s 
imposition of a penalty imposed on the MEMBER, the MEMBER shall reasonably cooperate and 
assist ZWM in its legal challenge.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the MEMBER 
shall promptly share any notices of violation or accusation issued pursuant to 14 CCR 18997.5 that 
it receives related to any alleged violations.  

6. The MEMBER or ZWM may terminate this agreement upon 180 days’ notice in writing to the 
other party, at which time the parties shall consider negotiation of a new agreement if such 
negotiations have not already commenced. 

7. The primary representatives of the parties for administration of this agreement are:   

 
  MEMBER ZWM 

Primary 
Representative: 

 Kimberly Scheibly 
Executive Director 

Address:   
Telephone:   
E-mail:   

 
The names and contact information of primary representative may be updated by notice from a 
party to the other party.  All communications by a party to another party shall be in writing and 
shall be effective upon (i) receipt of an e-mail confirming receipt of the initial communication if 
sent by e-mail, (ii) personal delivery or by express delivery or courier to the address set forth above, 
or (ii) when deposited in the U.S. Mail, first class, registered or certified mail, return receipt 
requested, to the address set forth above. 

We look forward to working with the ZWM on this important undertaking. 
 
Signed on behalf of MEMBER agency by, 
 
_________________________ 
[Print Name], MEMBER Manager, Zero Waste Marin Board Member 
 
 
Accepted and agreed: 
 
__________________________     ______________ 
Kimberly Scheibly, Executive Director     Date 
Zero Waste Marin 



7 
 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 
MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/446-7373 

 
 
 
Belvedere 
   
 
Corte Madera 
   
 
County of Marin 
   
 
Fairfax 
   
 
Larkspur 
   
 
Mill Valley 
   
 
Novato 
   
 
Ross 
 
 
San Anselmo 
  
 
San Rafael 
  
 
Sausalito 
 
 
Tiburon 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Date: April 20, 2023 
 
To: JPA Board of Directors 
 
From: Kimberly Scheibly, Executive Director 
 
Re: Amendment to JPA 1996 Agreement 
 
 
The County of Marin and the Cities of Belvedere, Larkspur, Mill Valley, 
Novato, San Rafael, and Sausalito, and the Towns of Corte Madera, 
Fairfax, Ross, San Anselmo, and Tiburon WHEREAS, County, Cities 
and Towns entered into a Revised Hazardous and Solid Waste Joint 
Powers Agreement (“Agreement”) dated July 1, 1996 for the mutual 
exercise of certain functions to meet the goals of the Source Reduction 
and Recycling Element mandated by State Public Resources Code 
Sections 40900 to 43000 and the adoption and implementation of the 
Household Hazardous Waste Element required by Sections 25135 to 
25135.8 of the Health and Safety Code. 
 
Historically, the JPA funded the Permanent Household Hazardous 
Waste Collection Facility (PHHWCF) for Marin (except for Novato) via a 
contract with the City of San Rafael Fire Department, which in turn 
contracts with the Marin Recycling & Resource Recovery Association 
(MRRRA) for the operation of the facility located at 565 Jacoby Street in 
San Rafael.  
 
Effective June 30, 2023, the City of San Rafael desires to terminate its 
agreement to operate the Household Hazardous Waste program on 
behalf of the Marin County Hazardous and Solid Waste Management 
Joint Powers Authority.  
 
As presented in Item #5 of the agenda, the JPA will assume oversight 
responsibilities for the management of the PHHWCF on July 1, 2023; 
which precipitated some minor changes in the existing 1996 agreement.  
 

 
 
 
 



7 
 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 
MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/446-7373 

 
Attachments: 

 
1. 1996 JPA Agreement 
2. JPA Amendment 

 
RECOMENDATION 

 
Information and discussion item only. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 





































 

 

AMENDMENT TO REVISED HAZARDOUS AND 

SOLID WASTE JOINT POWERS 

AGREEMENT COUNTY OF MARIN 
 
 
This AMENDMENT, is entered into this __ day of ____, 2023 pursuant to the provisions of 

Title 1, Division 7, Chapter 5, Article 1  (Section 6500 et seq.) of the California Government 

Code relating to the joint exercise of powers among the following parties:  The County of 

Marin (hereafter referred to as the "County"), and the Cities of Belvedere, Larkspur, Mill 

Valley, Novato, San Rafael, and Sausalito, and the Towns of Corte Madera, Fairfax, Ross, 

San Anselmo, and Tiburon (hereafter collectively referred to as the "Cities and Towns"), 

which are all within the County of Marin. 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS, County, Cities and Towns entered into a Revised Hazardous and Solid Waste 

Joint Powers Agreement (“Agreement”) dated July 1, 1996 for the mutual exercise of certain 

functions to meet the goals of the Source Reduction and Recycling Element mandated by 

State Public Resources Code Sections 40900 to 43000 and the adoption and implementation 

of the Household Hazardous Waste Element required by Sections 25135 to 25135.8 of the 

Health and Safety Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, effective June 30, 2023, the City of San Rafael desires to terminate its agreement 

to operate the Household Hazardous Waste program on behalf of the Marin County 

Hazardous and Solid Waste Management Joint Powers Authority; and 

 

WHEREAS, the parties seek to make amendments to the Agreement to clarify the Agreement 

terms. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants hereinafter 

contained, the parties hereto do hereby amend the Agreement as follows: 

 

1. The Second Paragraph of Section A of the Preamble (Scope of the Agreement) is 

hereby amended and restated in its entirety and shall hereafter be and read as 

follows: 



 

 

 

Responsibilities for programs in the Certified Unified Program Agency 

(CUPA), which include the Hazardous Materials Business Plan Program, 

Risk Management and Prevention Plan Program, Aboveground Storage 

Tank Program, Underground Storage Tank Program, the Hazardous Waste 

Generator Program and the Tiered Permit On-Site Treatment Program, are to 

be managed as provided for by state law.  The County will administer these 

programs for the County, Cities and Towns. 

 

2. Section D of the Preamble (AB 939 Local Task Force) is hereby amended and shall 

hereafter be and read as follows: 

 

The Board will establish and be advised by an AB 939 Local Task Force, 

whose composition, duties, and authority are specified in Public Resources 

Code Section 40950.  The Task Force will include at least two 

representatives of waste haulers, one representative of an environmental 

organization, two representatives of special districts involved in the regulation 

and disposal of waste, and five public representatives with technical 

expertise in solid waste, recycling and organics management appointed by 

the member agencies serving on the Executive Committee established in this 

Agreement. 

 

3. Article 18 is added to the Agreement as follows: 

 

ARTICLE 18: DESIGNATED ENTITY 

Except as otherwise permitted by law, and pursuant to Government Code 

section 6509, the parties hereby designate that the JPA shall be subject to 

the restrictions upon the manner of exercising its powers that are applicable 

to the County. 

 

4. This Amendment shall become effective when representatives of all of the parties 

have executed it and shall continue in full force and effect until terminated by an 

agreement executed by all parties.   

 



 

 

 

 

5. Except as expressly modified by this Amendment, all other terms and conditions of 

the Agreement not specifically modified, amended or superseded herein remain 

unchanged and in full force and effect. 

 

6. This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which 

will be entitled to be the original and all of which will constitute one and the same 

agreement. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by 

their proper officers thereunder duly authorized and effective as of the date of execution of all 

parties hereto. 



8 
 

MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS AND SOLID WASTE 
MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

Marin County Department of Public Works, P.O. Box 4186, San Rafael, CA  94913 
Phone:  415/473-6647 - FAX 415/446-7373 

 
 
 
 
Belvedere 
   
 
Corte Madera 
   
 
County of Marin 
   
 
Fairfax 
   
 
Larkspur 
   
 
Mill Valley 
   
 
Novato 
   
 
Ross 
 
 
San Anselmo 
  
 
San Rafael 
  
 
Sausalito 
 
 
Tiburon 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Date: April 20, 2023 
 
To: JPA Board of Directors 
 
From: Kimberly Scheibly, Executive Director 
 
Re: Confirm May and June Board Meetings 
 
It has come to our attention the Marin Managers Association (MMA) may 
not be meeting for the May 18th, 2023 meeting. If this is the case, the 
JPA Board will need to meet outside of this date to review and advise on 
the 2023/2024 fiscal year budget.  
 
The Board will also need to confirm a June meeting date to approve the 
budget. Assuming the MMA is meeting June 15th, the JPA Board can do 
the same.  
 
 
Recommendation 
 

Confirm May and June Board meeting dates.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

2 
 

Board Chair: Please confirm the vote on this item by reading the following items 
out loud after the vote. 
 
 
Motion:        Second:  ________   
 
 
Ayes:            
 
 
Noes:            
 
 
Abstentions:            

 
 
 

F:\Waste\JPA\JPA Meetings\JPA 4/15/2023 4:33 PM 
 


	Item 0 -Agenda April 2023
	Item 1 - Open Time for Public Comment
	Item 2 - ZWM_Minutes_3.16.23
	MARIN COUNTY HAZARDOUS & SOLID WASTE
	MANAGEMENT JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY
	(aka ZERO WASTE MARIN)

	Item 3 - Updates from Executive Director
	Item 4 - Update on PlaceWorks
	Item 4 - Attach 1 Cost Breakdown
	Item 4 - Attach 2 PlaceWorks Update
	Memorandum
	Introduction
	SB 1383 Compost and Mulch Procurement Tracking Tool
	Jurisdiction Responsibilities and Next Steps

	Item 5 - HHW Update
	Item 5 - Attach 1 Non-renewal letter
	Item 5 - Attach 2 Draft 1-year Agreement JPA and MRRRA 4.15.23
	Item 5 - Attach 3 Executed Amended Collection Agreement and Reso Jan 2012
	Item 5 - Attach 4 First_HHW_Collection_Amendment_CityofSanRafael_Signed_05.29.20
	Item 6 - Final SB 1383 Membership Support LOA
	Item 6  - Attach 1 - Final SB 1383 Letter Agreement 04-20-2023
	CCR, Section 18981.2 allows a local jurisdiction to make arrangements with a public or private designee to carry out some of the MEMBER’s SB 1383 responsibilities. One exception to this is that a private entity may not be designated to impose civil pe...
	1. Technical Assistance
	a) Information on organic waste generators’ requirements to properly separate materials in appropriate containers as required by 14 CCR18985.1 (1)
	b) Information on methods for the prevention of organic waste generation, recycling organic waste on-site, sending organic waste to community composting, as required by 14 CCR18985.1 (2)
	c) Information regarding methane reduction benefits of reducing landfill disposal of organic waste, as required by14 CCR18985.1 (3)
	d) Information related to the public health and safety and environmental impacts associated with the landfill disposal of organic waste, as required by 14 CCR18985.1 (5)
	e) Information regarding programs for the donation of edible food as required by 14 CCR18985.1 (6)
	f) Information regarding self-hauling requirements required by 14 CCR18985.1(7)
	g) ZWM’s website shall include information on a)-f) above as required by 14 CCR 18985.1, as well as a list of haulers, organics processing facilities, and food recovery organizations and services operating in the County as required by14 CCR18985.2
	A. ZWM shall partner with the MEMBER and facilitate the procurement of  all of their required organic waste product procurement target under SB 1383. ZWM shall work with MEMBER to identify sites for usage of compost allocation provided by franchise ag...
	B. ZWM shall investigate opportunities for procurement projects for adoption by interested MEMBERS, including the potential to procure compost through a compost application broker, which may be used inside or outside of the County, and the potential t...
	C. ZWM shall investigate sites where compost and mulch could be applied in the County. ZWM shall investigate the potential for projects to be structured in such a way that could allow ZWM to procure the compost on behalf of each MEMBER.  The MEMBER wo...
	D. ZWM anticipates being able to help the MEMBER fully meet their target through these efforts and MEMBER should also pursue their own efforts to procure organic waste products through activities such as compost giveaways and establishing community co...
	E. MEMBER shall be responsible for the purchase of recycled content paper and the maintenance of those records within the implementation record as required by 14 CCR 18993.3 (b & c)

	A. ZWM shall coordinate and implement the SB 1383 Regulations’ edible food recovery program requirements to which jurisdictions are subject under 14 CCR 18991.1–18991.2. The Parties agree that these requirements may be wholly or partially satisfied by...

	4. Enforcement
	A. ZWM shall function as a designated SB 1383 enforcement representative for the MEMBERS by performing the following actions:
	a) Monitoring: Monitoring compliance of commercial generators, commercial edible food generators, food recovery organizations and food recovery services. Monitoring will be conducted based on reports of potential non-compliance reported to ZWM by MEMB...
	b) Notices of Violation: Issuing notice of violations to commercial generators, commercial edible food generators, haulers, food recovery organizations and food recovery services, based on reports provided by the entities conducting the inspections, i...
	c) Emergency Circumstances – Waivers for MEMBER: ZWM shall notify CalRecycle and apply for a waiver to landfill organics if MEMBER experiences a natural disaster, uses a recyclable materials or Organic Waste processing facility that has a temporary op...
	d) MEMBER shall develop and maintain an anonymous complaint form and submittal process for submittal of complaints relating to SB 1383 violations as required by 14 CCR 18995.3.  Valid complaints shall be submitted to ZWM for investigation and resoluti...

	Nothing in this Section shall prevent either the MEMBER or ZWM from challenging CalRecycle enforcement activities. In the event that the MEMBER or ZWM intends to challenge CalRecycle’s imposition of a penalty imposed on the MEMBER, the MEMBER shall re...

	Item 6 - Attach 2 - Final SB 1383 Responsibilities Matrix 04-20-2023
	Summary

	Item 6 - Attach 3 - Tracked Changes SB 1383 Letter Agreement 04-20-2023
	CCR, Section 18981.2 allows a local jurisdiction to arrangemake arrangements with a public or private designee to carry out some of the MEMBER’s SB 1383 responsibilities. One exception to this is that a private entity may not be designated to impose c...
	1. Technical Assistance
	a) Information on organic waste generators’ requirements to properly separate materials in appropriate containers as required by 14 CCR18985.1 (1)
	b) Information on methods for the prevention of organic waste generation, recycling organic waste on-site, sending organic waste to community composting, as required by 14 CCR18985.1 (2)
	c) Information regarding methane reduction benefits of reducing landfill disposal of organic waste, as required by14 CCR18985.1 (3)
	d) Information related to the public health and safety and environmental impacts associated with the landfill disposal of organic waste, as required by 14 CCR18985.1 (5)
	e) Information regarding programs for the donation of edible food as required by 14 CCR18985.1 (6)
	f) Information regarding self-hauling requirements required by 14 CCR18985.1(7)
	g) ZWM’s website shall include information on a)-ef) above as required by 14 CCR 18985.1, as well as a list of haulers, organics processing facilities, and food recovery organizations and services operating in the County as required by14 CCR18985.2
	A. ZWM willshall partner with the MEMBER and facilitate the MEMBER’s procurement of recovered organic waste products to help the MEMBER meet some or all of their required organic waste product procurement target under SB 1383. ZWM willshall work with ...
	B. ZWM willshall investigate opportunities for procurement projects for adoption by interested MEMBERS, including the potential to procure compost through a compost application broker, which may be used inside or outside of the County, and the potenti...
	C. ZWM willshall investigate sites where compost and mulch could be applied in the County. ZWM willshall investigate the potential for projects to be structured in such a way that could allow ZWM to procure the compost on behalf of each MEMBER.  The M...
	D. ZWM does not anticipateanticipates being able to help the MEMBER fully meet their target through these efforts and MEMBER should also pursue their own efforts to procure organic waste products through activities such as compost giveaways and establ...
	E. MEMBER willshall be responsible for the purchase of recycled content paper and the maintenance of those records within the implementation record as required by 14 CCR 18993.3 (b & c)

	Edible Food Recovery Programs. A. ZWM shall coordinate and implement the SB 1383 Regulations’ edible food recovery program requirements to which jurisdictions are subject under 14 CCR 18991.1–18991.2. The Parties agree that these requirements may be w...

	4. Enforcement
	EnforcementA. ZWM shall function as a designated SB 1383 enforcement representative by enforcing requirements for the MEMBERS required by SB 1383 by performing the following actions:
	a) Monitoring: Monitoring compliance, through a delegated entity, of commercial generators, commercial edible food generators, and food recovery organizations and food recovery services through. Monitoring will be conducted based on reports of potenti...
	b) Notices of Violation: Issuing notice of violations to commercial generators, commercial edible food generators, haulers, food recovery organizations and food recovery services, based on inputreports provided by the entities conducting the inspectio...
	c) Emergency Circumstances – Waivers for MEMBER: ZWM willshall notify CalRecycle and apply for a waiver to landfill organics if MEMBER experiences a natural disaster, uses a recyclable materials or Organic Waste processing facility that has a temporar...
	d) MEMBER shall develop and maintain an anonymous complaint form and submittal process for submittal of complaints relating to SB 1383 violations as required by 14 CCR 18995.3.  Valid complaints shall be submitted to ZWM for investigation and resoluti...

	Nothing in this Section shall prevent either the MEMBER or ZWM from challenging CalRecycle enforcement activities. In the event that the MEMBER or ZWM intends to challenge CalRecycle’s imposition of a penalty imposed on the MEMBER, the MEMBER shall re...

	Item 7 - Amendment to JPA 1996 Agreement 4-14-2023
	Item 7 - Attach 1 - JPA Agreement 1996
	Item 7 - Attach 2 - JPA Amendment FINAL DRAFT_4-6-2023
	Item 8 - May and June Meetings



